

Meeting of States Parties

Distr.: General 24 March 2014

Original: English

Twenty-fourth Meeting New York, 9-13 June 2014

Curricula vitae of candidates nominated by States parties for election to the International Tribunal for the Law of the Sea

Note by the Registrar

The Registrar hereby submits to the Meeting of States parties the curricula vitae of the candidates nominated by States parties for the election of members of the International Tribunal for the Law of the Sea, which will take place at the twenty-fourth Meeting of States parties (see annex). A list of the candidates nominated by States parties is contained in document SPLOS/265.





Annex

Curricula vitae of candidates nominated by States parties for election to the International Tribunal for the Law of the Sea*

Contents

	Page
Alonso Gómez-Robledo Verduzco (Mexico)	3
Mohammed H. Hamoud (Iraq)	13
Tomas Heidar (Iceland)	19
Albertus Jacobus Hoffmann (South Africa)	25
María Teresa Infante Caffi (Chile)	32
James Luta Kateka (United Republic of Tanzania)	38
L. Dolliver M. Nelson (Grenada)	42
Jin-Hyun Paik (Republic of Korea)	44
Stanisław Michał Pawlak (Poland)	50
Helmut Türk (Austria)	53
Shunji Yanai (Japan)	59

 $[\]ast\,$ Curricula vitae are issued without formal editing.

Alonso Gómez-Robledo Verduzco (Mexico)

Education

- Law Degree, with honors. Universidad Nacional Autónoma de México (1974)
- Philosophy studies. Universidad Nacional Autónoma de México (1970)
- Completed the Ph. D. program and exams. Graduate of the Institute of International Studies, Geneva, Switzerland (1975-1977)

Teaching activities

- Assistant to Dr. Jorge Carpizo, Professor of Constitutional Law. School of Law, Universidad Nacional Autónoma de México (1973-1974)
- Professor of Public International Law. School of Law, Universidad Nacional Autónoma de México (since 1978)
- Professor of the Law of Treaties and Negotiation Techniques. School of Social and Political Sciences, Universidad Nacional Autónoma de México (1978-1979)
- Professor of Public International Law. Universidad Panamericana (1983, 1984, 1985, 1988, 2001)
- Professor of Public International Law. Instituto Matías Romero (Diplomatic Academy), Mexican Secretariat of Foreign Affairs (1984)
- Taught the course "State Sovereignty over its Natural Resources", XV Course of International Law, Inter-American Juridical Committee, Organization of American States, Rio de Janeiro, Brazil (August 1988)
- Seminar on the Law of the Sea, Institute of Marine and Limnological Sciences. Universidad Nacional Autónoma de México (1991)
- Professor of Public International Law. Instituto Tecnológico Autónomo de México (1995-1996)
- Tutor for Master's thesis, Seminar of Terminal Option Group B. Universidad Iberoamericana, Puebla Campus (1997-1998)
- Taught the course "Extradition in International Law", XXVII Course of International Law, Inter-American Juridical Committee, Organization of American States, Rio de Janeiro, Brazil (August 2000)
- Seminar on International Responsibility. Universidad Iberoamericana (January-May 2001)
- Director of several theses

Professional activities

- Awarded a scholarship at the Institute for Legal Research. Universidad Nacional Autónoma de México (1973-1974)
- Legal Intern at the Office of Legal Affairs. Universidad Nacional Autónoma de México (March-September 1973)

- Adviser to the Commission of Studies and Legislative Projects. Universidad Nacional Autónoma de México (1974)
- Full-time Research, Institute for Legal Research. Universidad Nacional Autónoma de México (since 1978)
- Member of the Mexican Delegation to the Third Conference on the Law of the Sea in its VII, VIII, IX and X sessions (1978-1981)
- Secretary of the Technical Council of Humanities. Universidad Nacional Autónoma de México (1978-1981)
- Adviser to the Office of the Legal Adviser. Mexican Secretariat of Foreign Affairs (1980-1984)
- Visiting Researcher of the Institute for Marine Studies. Washington University, Seattle, Washington (1981-1982)
- Director of Legislation in the Office of Legal Affairs. Secretariat of the Interior of Mexico (1984)
- Chief of Staff of the Dr. Jorge Carpizo, Chancellor (Rector). Universidad Nacional Autónoma de México (1985-1986)
- Member of the Mexican National System of Researches, second level (1987-2002)
- Researcher on the Law of the Sea, Seconded to the New York University (June-December 1987)
- Director of the magazine "Universidad de México", Universidad Nacional Autónoma de México (June-November 1988)
- Second Secretary at the Permanent Mission of Mexico to the UNESCO, Paris, France (November 1988-July 1990)
- Adviser for Special Affairs, National Human Rights Commission (August 1990-March 1991)
- Member of the Academic Council of the Institute for Legislative Research, Mexican Chamber of Deputies (since 1992)
- Member of the Mexican Committee for the United Nations Decade for International Law (1991-1993)
- Member of the Reporting Commission, Research Center for North America (CISAN), Universidad Nacional Autónoma de México (1992-2000)
- Member of the Subcommittee for Scholarships, Institute for Legal Research. Universidad Nacional Autónoma de México
- Member of the Panel of Three Legal Experts for the Nicaragua Case, Organization of American States (September 1993-February 1994)
- Adviser at the Office of the Attorney General of Mexico (1993)
- Adviser to the Secretary, Secretariat of the Interior of Mexico (1994)
- Member of the Mexican Branch of the International Law Association (1996-2002)

- Member of the Selection Committee of the Social Sciences Program to support Research Projects and of the Scholarships Committee, National Council for Science and Technology (CONACYT) (1997)
- Visiting Researcher, Jamail Center for Legal Research. University of Texas (January-July 1998)
- Alternate Member in the United Nations Subcommittee on the Prevention of Discrimination and Protection of Minorities (1998-2001)
- Coordinator for the Public International Law section of the Mexican Law Dictionary, published by the Institute for Legal Research. Universidad Nacional Autónoma de México
- Member of the International Affairs Section of the Board on the Reform of the State (Mexico) (2000)
- Member of the Inter-American Juridical Committee, Organization of the American States, Rio de Janeiro, Brazil (2003-2006)
- Member of the Panel of Three Legal Experts for the Haiti Case, Organization of American States (April-June 2002)
- Arbitrator of the Permanent Court of Arbitration (PCA) (since 2001)
- Arbitrator for Settlement of Disputes under the United Nations Convention of the Law of the Sea (since November 2002)
- Commissioner at the Federal Institute of Transparency, Access to Information and Personal Data (Mexico) (September 2002-September 2009). Appointed by the Federal Executive and ratified by the Senate
- Member of the Board and Permanent Secretary, Universidad Nacional Autónoma de México (since December 2005)

Articles

- "Análisis del Reglamento para la expedición de certificados de nacionalidad mexicana" *Legislación y Jurisprudencia*, UNAM, year 2, vol 2, January-June 1973
- "Aspectos de la Reparación en Derecho Internacional", *Boletín Mexicano de Derecho Comparado*, Mexico, UNAM, N.28-29, January-August 1977
- "Problema del Previo Agotamiento de los Recursos Internos" Anuario Jurídico, UNAM, V.VI, 1979
- "La Historiografía y el estudio de los orígenes inmediatos de las guerras mundiales", Anuario Mexicano de Relaciones Internacionales, ENEP-ACATLAN, 1980-81
- "La enseñanza del Derecho Internacional Público", Boletín Mexicano de Derecho Comparado, UNAM, 1981
- "El estado actual de la Jurisdicción Internacional y el futuro de la misma", *Jurídica*, Universidad Iberoamericana, 1980

- "La perspectiva de las relaciones entre México y E.U. y la visita del Presidente Carter a México", Perspectivas actuales de las relaciones entre México y E.U., Mexico, UNAM, 1981
- "El nuevo orden jurídico internacional", Alcances y Perspectivas del Nuevo Orden Internacional, Mexico, UNAM-Matías Romero, 1981
- Commentary to the paper "La Política Internacional", La Universidad y los Problemas Nacionales, Mexico, UNAM, V.IX, t.3
- "La responsabilidad por contaminación en Derecho Internacional", Relaciones México-Estados Unidos. Una visión Interdisciplinaria, Mexico, UNAM, 1981
- "Aspectos del Nuevo Orden Jurídico Internacional", Essays in Honour of Dr. Vázquez del Mercado, Mexico, Porrúa, 1982
- "Consideraciones sobre la Responsabilidad Internacional del Estado sin hecho ilícito y la contaminación marina", *Boletín Mexicano de Derecho Comparado*, UNAM, September-December 1982
- Contributor to the book *Introducción al Derecho Mexicano* in the chapter "Derecho Internacional Público", Mexico, UNAM, reprint 1983
- "El derecho de asilo en el sistema jurídico internacional", Essays in Honour of Roberto L. Mantilla Molina, Mexico, Porrúa, 1984
- "A propósito del Ixtoc I. Problemas planteados por la contaminación resultante de la explotación de los fondos marinos en Derecho Internacional", Anuario Jurídico, vol.X, UNAM, 1983
- "Concepto de Responsabilidad Internacional del Estado en Hans Kelsen", Boletín Mexicano de Derecho Comparado, UNAM 1984
- "La Convención de Naciones Unidas sobre el Derecho del Mar y la Explotación de los Fondos Marinos", Anuario Mexicano de Relaciones Internacionales, Vol. III, UNAM, 1982
- Contributor to the Mexican Legal Dictionary in the chapter on Public International Law, IIJ, UNAM
- "Notas sobre el llamado Derecho Internacional del Desarrollo", *Boletín Mexicano de Derecho Comparado*, UNAM, September-December 1987
- "Palestina: integración de un Estado", Essays in Honour of Yolanda Frías, UNAM 1991
- "Aspectos Internacionales del Tratado de Libre Comercio", Acta, July-August 1991
- "La enseñanza de los Derechos Humanos en la esfera internacional", Boletín Mexicano de Derecho Comparado, UNAM, 1992
- "Derecho Internacional de los Derechos Humanos. Problemas de su enseñanza", *Fundación Siglo XXI*, vol 2
- "Seguridad internacional colectiva y Crisis del Golfo Pérsico", Boletín Mexicano de Derecho Comparado, UNAM, 1992

- "La Autodeterminación de los pueblos como principio normativo",
 7 Principios básicos de la Política Exterior de México, PRI, Comisión Nacional de Asuntos Internacionales, June 1993
- "Jurisdicción interna, principio de no-intervención y derecho de injerencia humanitaria", *Boletín Mexicano de Derecho Comparado*, UNAM, 1993
- "Reglamentación jurídica de la Zona Económica Exclusiva", *El régimen jurídico de la pesca en México*, UNAM-Secretaría de Pesca, Mexico, 1994
- "Concepto de Delito Político", Essays in Honour of César Sepúlveda, Mexico, UNAM, 1994
- "Régimen Jurídico de los Tratados en México", Problemas actuales del Derecho Constitucional, Studies in honour of Jorge Carpizo, Mexico, UNAM, 1994
- "Derecho Internacional y nueva Ley de Nacionalidad Mexicana", Boletín Mexicano de Derecho Comparado, UNAM, 1994
- "El Derecho a la intimidad y el Derecho a la libertad de expresión: Derechos Humanos fundamentales", *Ars Iuris*, Universidad Panamericana, 14, 1995
- "Dual Nationality", Voices of Mexico, n.33, October-December 1995
- "La Carta de la OEA y los Protocolos de Buenos Aires, Carta de Indias, Washington y Managua", *Boletín Mexicano de Derecho Comparado*, N.84, September-December 1995
- "¿Tiene el Poder Ejecutivo de los E.U. autoridad para interpretar y en su caso violar el Derecho Internacional?", *Boletín Mexicano de Derecho Comparado*, UNAM, 1995
- "Le Traité Américain du Règlement Pacifique et la Cour Internationale de Justice", Annuaire Français de Droit International, 1995
- "Interpretación de los Tratados en Derecho Internacional Positivo", Legal Essays in Honour of *Santiago Barajas*, UNAM, 1995
- "Aproximaciones al marco jurídico internacional del Tratado de Libre Comercio con América del Norte", *El Tratado de Libre Comercio de América del Norte*, vol. II, UNAM, 1993
- Introduction to the Third Volume of the collected Works of *Jorge Castañeda*, CM-SRE, Mexico, 1995
- "Notas sobre la Extradición en Derecho Internacional a la luz del Caso Álvarez Machain", Boletim da Sociedade Brasileira de Direito Internacional, Year XLXV. N.87, December 1993
- "Caso relativo al diferendo fronterizo terrestre, insular y marítimo, entre El Salvador y Honduras (Nicaragua), fallado por la Corte de la Haya el 11 de septiembre de 1992", *Boletín Mexicano de Derecho Comparado*, N.85, UNAM 1995
- "En torno a la Ley Helms Burton de 1996", Boletín Mexicano de Derecho Comparado, n.88, UNAM, 1997
- "Mexico allows Dual Nationality", Voices of Mexico, N.39, UNAM, 1997

- "La soberanía de los Estados sobre sus recursos naturales, Lex, March 1997
- "El Derecho Internacional y la protección de los Derechos Humanos en el Sistema Interamericano", El papel del Derecho Internacional en América. La Soberanía Nacional en la era de la integración regional, Mexico, UNAM-American Society of International Law, 1997
- "César Sepúlveda. El Derecho de Gentes y la organización internacional en los umbrales del siglo XXI", *Política Exterior*, N.51, S.R.E., 1996-1997
- Commentary to Articles 30, 32 and 37 of the Constitution to update the book Derechos del Pueblo Mexicano. México a través de sus Constituciones, V.i, T 13, Mexico, Chamber of Deputies, 1997
- "Acuerdo vigente desde el 28 de julio, relativo a la aplicación de la parte XI de la Convención de Naciones Unidas sobre el Derecho del Mar", (Legislative review), *Boletín Mexicano de Derecho Comparado*, UNAM, 1998
- "Nexos entre la Comisión y la Corte Interamericana de Derechos Humanos", Ars Iuris, vol. 17, Mexico, Universidad Panamericana, 1997
- "Métodos de Delimitación en Derecho del Mar, y el problema de las islas", Boletín Mexicano de Derecho Comparado, UNAM, 1998
- "Naturaleza de los Derechos Humanos y su validez en Derecho Internacional Consuetudinario", *Liber amicorum Héctor Fix Zamudio*, San José de Costa Rica, Registry of the Interamerican Court of Human Rights, 1998
- "Caso da Crise Institucional da Nicaragua (1993-1994), Boletim da Sociedade Brasileira de Direito Internacional, N.113/118, June-December 1998
- "Los Tratados Internacionales, el Derecho a la Información y el respeto a la vida privada" (co-autor), *Boletín Mexicano de Derecho Comparado*, Vol. 97, UNAM, 2000
- "Métodos de delimitación en Derecho Internacional del Mar y el problema de las islas", Los Espacios Marítimos y su Delimitación, Secretaría de Energía, Mexico, 1999
- "El alegato de genocidio y de 'Jurisdicción Universal', en casos de extradición internacional", Jurídica, Mexico, Universidad Iberoamericana, 2001
- "Los Tratados Internacionales, el Derecho a la Información y el respeto a la vida privada", *Revista Argentina de Derecho Constitucional*, año 2, 2001
- "La migración en el marco de las mutaciones actuales del derecho internacional", *Estudios en torno a la migración*, Mexico, UNAM, 2001
- "Elevating Foreign Policy Principles to the Constitutional Level", Voices of Mexico, N.56, Mexico, UNAM, 2001
- "Consideraciones en torno a las operaciones para el mantenimiento de la paz", *Boletín Mexicano de Derecho Comparado*, N.103, UNAM, 2002
- "La Plataforma Continental México-Estados Unidos de América. El Caso del Polígono Occidental en el Golfo de México", Anuario Mexicano de Derecho Internacional, vol II, UNAM, 2002

- "Acceso a datos personales y expediente clínico, como derecho humano fundamental", Essays to Honour *Emilio Rabasa Mishkin*, 2010
- "Caso González y otras (Campo Algodonero) vs México. CIDH. Sentencia del 16 de noviembre de 2009", *Revista Mexicana de Derecho Constitucional*, UNAM, June-December 2010
- "Caso 'La última Tentación de Cristo' (Olmedo Bustos y otros) vs Chile. Sentencia del 5 de febrero de 2001", *Revista Mexicana de Derecho Constitucional*, UNAM, June-December 2011
- "Corte Interamericana de Derechos Humanos. Desaparición forzada de personas", Anuario Mexicano de Derecho Internacional, UNAM, 2012
- "Estatuto Jurídico del Juez Constitucional en América Latina y Europa", Essays to Honour Dr. Jorge Carpizo, una breve semblanza, Mexico, 2013

Books

- La Soberanía de los Estados sobre sus Recursos Naturales (compiler), Mexico, UNAM, 1980
- Relaciones México-Estados Unidos. Una visión interdisciplinaria (compiler), Mexico, UNAM, 1981
- Responsabilidad Internacional por daños transfronterizos (Liability for ultrahazardous activities), Mexico, UNAM, 1983
- El Nuevo Derecho del Mar. Guía Introductiva a la Convención de Montego Bay (The new International Law of the Sea), Mexico, Porrúa, 1986
- Jurisprudencia Internacional en materia de Delimitación Marítima (International Jurisprudence in maritime delimitation), Mexico, UNAM, 1989
- United States vs Alvarez Machain, Guatemala, 1993
- Temas Selectos de Derecho International (Selected topics in International Law), Mexico, UNAM, Fifth Updated Edition, 2008
- Extradición en Derecho Internacional: aspectos y tendencias relevantes, Mexico, UNAM, Second Updated Edition, 2000
- Derecho Internacional del Mar. Panorama del Derecho Mexicano (An overlook of International Law of the Sea), Mexico, McGraw Hill, 1997
- Derechos Humanos en el Sistema Interamericano (Human rights in the Interamerican System), Mexico, Porrúa, 2000
- Diccionario de Derecho International (in collaboration with J. Witker), (Dictionary of International Law), Mexico, Porrúa-UNAM, 2001
- Protección de datos personales en México. El Caso del Poder Ejecutivo Federal (in collaboration with Lina Ornelas), (Protection of Personal Data in Mexico. The Case of the Executive Power in Mexico), Mexico, UNAM, 2006
- Caso de las Actividades Militares y Paramilitares en y contra Nicaragua (ICJ), (Case concerning military and paramilitary activities in and against Nicaragua), Mexico, UNAM, 2011

Other activities

- "Evaluación sucinta de las relaciones históricas México-Estados Unidos", UNAM, 20 February 1979
- Commentary to the paper on International Policy of Professor César Sepúlveda in the Program "XX round Table", to celebrate the autonomy of the National University of Mexico 1979
- Coordinator of lectures on Mexico-US Relations, with the lecture "Problemas de la Responsabilidad Internacional por contaminación", UNAM, July 1980
- "La enseñanza del Derecho Internacional", Second Program on Law and International Relations, Querétaro, 23-25 April 1980
- "El Nuevo orden jurídico internacional", Commentary to the paper of Professor César Sepúlveda. Institute Matías Romero of the Mexican Secretariat of Foreign Affairs, January 1980
- "Teoría y práctica de la responsabilidad internacional por contaminación marítima", Lecture, Faculty of Law, UNAM, 12 May 1981
- "Responsabilidad International por daños transfronterizos", Universidad Autónoma de Nuevo León, 3 March 1983
- "La Explotación de los fondos oceánicos más allá de la jurisdicción nacional", Program on the Legal Regulation of the Social Area, Institute for Legal Research, UNAM, 22 April 1983
- "El derecho de asilo en el sistema jurídico internacional", Conference on the Legal Aspects of the Mexican Foreign Policy, 14 July 1983
- "El Caso del Ixtoc I y su incidencia en la Política Exterior Mexicana", Lectures on Foreign Policy in Honour of Isidro Fabela, Querétaro, 3 May 1984
- "Reflexiones sobre el Embargo atunero", First University Congress on Mexico and Latin America facing US, June 1987
- "Constitución y Política Exterior", Institute for Legal Research, UNAM, May 1987
- "Problemas jurídicos actuales del nuevo orden económico internacional", International Conference on Perspectives for the Developing Countries in the light of the New Trends of International Law: The Case of Mexico, Querétaro, April 1991
- "La enseñanza de los Derechos Humanos y el Derecho Internacional Público", First Forum of Education and Human Rights, Mexican Academy of Human Rights, 30 November 1990
- "Violación de los Derechos Humanos en las relaciones México-Estados Unidos", Workshop on Human Rights, Guanajuato, November 1991
- "La eventual reorganización y el futuro de la Organización de las Naciones Unidas", A planet for all, Lecture series, Asociación Mexicana de Estudios Internacionales, (AMEI), Zacatecas, November 1991
- "El Derecho Internacional ante las transformaciones mundiales", Integration, Desintegration and Reintegration, AMEI, Acapulco, March 1993

- Seminary of the Faculty, Institute for Legal Research, UNAM, "El Caso Álvarez Machain", December 1993
- "México y su política exterior", Lectures in Honour of Ignacio L. Vallarta, Institute for Legal Research, UNAM, October 1993
- "NAFTA y América Latina. Retos de la Política Exterior Peruana en el Nuevo Escenario Internacional", Peruvian Center of International Studies, Lima, Perú, November 1993
- "El Derecho Internacional de los Derechos Humanos", Lectures under the auspices of the National Human Rights Commission, Institute for Legal Research, UNAM, 1993
- "Solución de controversias y el Nuevo Tribunal del Derecho del Mar", The New Law of the Sea, Universidad del Mar, Oaxaca, November 1994
- "Reformas a la Carta de la ONU", The International Society, Transnational and Supranational, Tlaxcala, October 1994
- "Legal Regimes of NAFTA in Mexico and the United States", The California Western School of Law, San Diego, California, April 1994
- "Protección de la privacía frente al Estado", Institute for Legal Research, UNAM November 1995
- Participation in the UN Congress on Public International Law, New York 13-17 March 1995
- "La ONU frente a una definición del Derecho del Desarrollo", in the 50th Anniversary of the UN, Institute for Christian Social Doctrine, October 1995
- "El Derecho Internacional y la Protección de los Derechos Humanos en el sistema Interamericano", Congress organized by the Institute for Legal Research, UNAM, and The American Society of International Law, The Function of International Law in America, 6-7 June 1996
- Colloquium on the codification and development of International Law, New York, 28-29 October 1997
- "El Caso Pinochet", Law School, UNAM, April 1999
- "Algunos problemas acerca de la enseñanza del Derecho Internacional Público", Course of International Law, OAS, Montevideo, October 1999
- "La Extradición en Derecho Internacional", Current Problems of Law facing the New Century, Universidad de Chiapas, 10-12 November 1999
- "Primeras aproximaciones al derecho de acceso a la información pública", Seminar on transparency, access to information and personal data, Mexico, June 2004
- "Protección de datos personales y el expediente clínico", Seminar on transparency, access to information and personal data, Mexico, June 2005
- "Rendición de cuentas", Seminar on transparency, access to information and personal data, Mexico, June 2006

- Participation in International Conference on Anti-Corruption Good Governance and Human Rights, Paris, 24-26 June 2009
- "Les limitations et les nouveaux instruments pour réglementer le future de la vie privée" 30éme Conférence Internationale des Commissaires a la protection des données et de la vie privée. Strasbourg, France, 11-19 October 2008
- "Seguridad Nacional y transparencia", Institute for Legal Research, UNAM, June 2011

Mohammed H. Hamoud (Iraq)

[Original: Arabic and English]

Date of birth: 1936

Education

1959	Bachelor of Law, University of Baghdad-Iraq
1965	Post Graduate Diploma in Public Law, University of Montpellier, France
1967	PhD, Public Law, University of Montpellier, France
1973	Diploma, The Institute of The Hague Academy for International Law

Languages

Arabic, French, English

Experience

1959-1962, 1988- 2003, 2010 to date	Attorney at Law
1969-1973	University Lecturer in International law, College of Law, University of Baghdad-Iraq
1973-1981, 1986- 1988	Professor of International Law, College of Law, University of Baghdad-Iraq
1974-1979	Head of International Law Dep. College of Law, University of Baghdad-Iraq
1981-1986	Minister Plenipotentiary, then Ambassador at the Ministry of Foreign Affairs
1981-1986	Director General of Legal Department, Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Baghdad-Iraq
1997-2003	Member of Legal Experts Committee, Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Baghdad-Iraq
1999-2003	Legal Advisor to the Iraqi Minister of Foreign Affairs, Baghdad-Iraq
2003-2004	Ambassador, Head of Legal Department, Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Baghdad-Iraq
2004-2010	Undersecretary of the Minister of Foreign Affairs, covering the Department of Legal and International Organizations and the Department of Human Rights Affairs

In 2006, the task of supervising the following Departments been added to my responsibilities at the Ministry of Foreign Affairs;

- Department of Administrative & Financial Affairs,
- The Department of Consular Affairs,
- The Protocol Department,
- The Engineering and Communications Department.

2006-to date	Member of the International Court of Arbitration, The Hague
2010-to date	Senior Advisor to the Iraqi Minister of Foreign Affairs
2013-2014	Member of the Arbitration Team, Iraqi Airways- Horse Co., Cairo
	Member of the Editorial Board of a number of legal and scientific magazines

Publications

Articles

Apartheid and International Law, Article published at the Palestinian Studies Center Review, 1972

Preamble of Treaties, Article published in the Law Review Journal, Baghdad, 1974

Protection of Civilian Population in Non-International Armed Conflicts, Article published at the Review of Arab Studies, Cairo 1975 (in French Language)

Right of Access to the Sea for Landlocked Countries, Article published at the Iraqi Scientific Academy Review, Baghdad 1980

Armed Conflicts in Non-Aligned Countries, Article published at the Generations Studies Review, Baghdad 1981

Legal System of Navigation in the Strait of Hormuz, Article Published at the Review of Arab Studies Center, Beirut 1982,

Human Rights in Mesopotamia, Article published at the International Review For Human Rights, Paris 1986 (in French Language)

Books

OPEC, a Doctorate Thesis, France, 1974, (in French Language)

International Law of Sea: Zone of National Jurisdiction, Baghdad 1990

International Law of Sea: The High Sea, Baghdad 2000

Book, International Law of Sea, Amman, 2008, 2011

Studies in International Law, Amman- Jordan, 2013

Supervisor of academic research

During the past thirty years, I supervised tens of master and P.H.D thesis at different Iraqi Universities. They covered different aspects of the Law of the Sea, including: the Legal System for Exploring and Exploiting the Sea Bed, the Legal System governing International Straits, Demarcation of International Sea Boundaries, Demarcation of the Continental Shelf, The Legal System Governing International Water ways, International Canals, etc.

Member of different committees reviewed and examined tens of P.H.D, and M.A. post graduate students thesis at Iraqi Universities.

Participation in international symposiums

Symposium: International Law for Asian States, Manila-Philippines, 1969

Symposium: Studies and Researches Center, The Hague Academy for International Law, The Hague 1973

Symposium: U.N. International Law Commission, Geneva 1974

Symposium: STRASBOURG Institute for Human Rights, Strasbourg, 1975

Symposium: the Arab Lawyers Union; The Israeli attack on the Iraqi Nuclear Reactors of Osiraq, Baghdad 1981

Symposium: Oceans Projects-Tunisia 1982

Workshop: International Cooperation in Protecting Marine Environment in Seabed, Kingston, Jamaica 2002

Meeting of Experts on Returning/Recuperating Cultural Possessions and Combating their Smuggling, Seoul-Korea, 2002

Participation in international conferences and meetings

Member of Iraqi Delegation to the 3rd Law of the Sea Conference during its sessions 1975-1982

Represented Iraq in signing the UN Law of the Sea Convention 1982, Jamaica

Head of the Iraqi Delegation to the meetings of the Preparatory Committee for International Jurisdiction of Sea Beds since its establishment up to 1986, then in 2001 and 2002

Coordinator of the Drafting Arab Countries Group to 3rd. Conference on the Law of the Sea

Chairman of the Permanent Arab League's Legal Committee 1982-1986

Member of the Iraqi Delegation to the sessions of the Asian-African Consultative Legal Committee, New Delhi 1976; Baghdad 1977, and Doha 1978

Member of the Iraqi Delegation to the meetings of the Arab Expert Committee for the Law of Seas, 1975-1982

Member of the Iraqi Delegation to the Governmental Expert Committee for amending the Arab League Charter

Member of the Iraqi Delegations participated at different Arab Summits of Ministers of Foreign Affairs and of Heads of States

Personal Envoy of the Iraqi Foreign Minister and the President of the Republic to the Chairman OIC on the Iraq-Iran armed conflict 1980-1988

Head of the Iraqi Delegation to the meetings of the UN Gulf War Compensation Commission

Head of the Iraqi Delegation to negotiate the Arab Gulf Environment damaged as a result of the military conflict in the Gulf Region

Member of the Iraqi Delegation to number of OIC Meetings of Arab and Islamic Countries Foreign Ministers

Member of the Iraqi Delegation to number of meetings of Non-Aligned Foreign Ministers

Member of the Iraqi Defense Panel before the OPEC Judicial Court on "the Disruption of Oil Flow through the Iraqi oil pipeline to Syria"

Member of the Iraqi Delegation to number of U.N. General Assembly Sessions

Member of the Iraqi Delegation to the Security Council Sessions held over the Iran-Iraq conflict

Vice-Chairman of the U.N. Committee concerned with "the Development of the Principle of Non-Use of Force in International Relations, 1982

Vice-Chairman of the Preparatory Committee for "Establishing Mechanisms for Drafting of the Iraqi Constitution, Baghdad 2003

Legal Expert of the Iraqi Government at the UN Gulf War Compensation Commission

Head of the Iraqi Delegation in charge of reaching an agreement to address issues related to Iraqi properties in Turkey and Turkish properties in Iraq, 1984

Activities in important spheres

Iraq's borders with neighbouring countries

Legal Expert of the Iraqi Delegation during the negotiation concerning the delimitation of Iraq-Jordan international borders, which was concluded with the signing of the Iraqi/Jordanian borders agreement of 1984

Legal Expert of the Iraqi Delegation during the Iraqi/Saudi Arabia negotiation to decide on the international borders between the two countries, which resulted in signing the Iraqi/S. Arabia Borders Agreement of 1984

Head of the Iraqi Delegation in the Joint Iraqi/Turkish Border Demarcation Committee, 1982-1986

Official In Charge of following up issues related to the common Iraq-Iran Borders since 1981-to date

Head of the Iraqi Delegation in the Joint Iraq-Kuwait Committee which is to implement UN Resolutions on Demarcation of Borders between the two countries. Since, the Committee completed the verification of border pillars locations. It also discussed different problems relating to the common borders between the two countries, including:

- 1. Joint Oil Fields,
- 2. Measures to control borders security and anti smugglings,
- 3. Compensation related issues for Iraqi nationals affected by border demarcation,
- 4. Reviewing all issues related to common marine borders between the two countries,
- 5. Navigation at Khor-Abdullah and other navigational waterways leading up to the ports of the two countries,

Head of the National Committee for Drawing up the Baseline of the Iraqi Territorial Sea

Head of the Iraqi Delegation during the negotiations of the Agreement of Partnership and Cooperation between Iraq and EU

Head of the Iraqi Delegation during the negotiations on the Legal Status following the USA Military from Iraq

Member of the Iraqi Delegation during the negotiation of the Strategic Cooperation Agreement between Iraq and USA

Second Gulf War compensation

Member of Legal Experts Panel supervising Iraq's Legal responses to various compensation claims

Legal supervisor for preparing a number of legal responses to the compensation claims presented by the Iraqi Government directly and or through International Law Firms

Supervisor of Legal compensation claims dossier by the Iraqi Foreign Ministry, in my capacity as head of the Legal Department and Undersecretary for Legal Affairs at the Ministry of Foreign Affairs

International lawsuits

Member of the Group of Iraqi Lawyers in the legal case presented by the Iraqi Government against the Syrian Government before OPEC Judiciary Panel

International rivers

Member of the Iraqi Delegation during the negotiation between Iraq and Turkish over Iraqi rights in common waterways. Also Focal point of the Water ways Dossier at the Iraqi Foreign Ministry,

Law of the Sea

Member of the Iraqi Delegation to the 3rd UN Conference on Law of Sea, during all its session 1975-1982

Coordinator of the Arab Drafting Committee during the 3rd Conference on the Law of Seas

Expert on Law of Sea accredited by the UNSG Representative to the 3rd Convention on Law of Seas

Head of the Iraqi Delegation to the meetings of the Preparatory Committee for International Authority over Sea-Beds and the International Tribunal on Law of Seas

Prisoners of war, refugees and internally displaced persons

Head of the Committee of Victims of War during the Iraq-Iran military conflict, 1981-1986

Negotiator representing the Government of Iraq with the International Commission of Red Cross (ICRC) on issues related to the prisoners of war, 1981-1986

Focal point and Official in charge at MFA of Iraqi Migrants and Displaced Persons Dossier

Member of the Iraqi Delegation to Geneva Conference on Iraqi Migrants and Displaced Persons

International Compact with Iraq

Member of Preparatory Committee for International Compact with Iraq

Member of Baghdad Enlarged Committee for International Compact with Iraq

Iraqi Government Focal point on the International Compact with Iraq Initiative

Drafting Committee on the Iraqi Constitution

Deputy Chairman of "the Committee for Establishing Mechanisms for Drafting the Iraqi Constitution"

Relationship with international organizations

Focal point and supervisor of relationship with the UN and its organs operating in Iraq, at the Iraqi Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Focal point at the Iraqi Ministry of Foreign Affairs on the relation between Iraq and the EU

Focal point and supervisor on the relations between Iraq and all International Organizations at the Ministry of Foreign Affairs

Focal point at the Ministry of Foreign Affairs on relation with the OIC and the Non-aligned Movement

Head of the Iraqi Preparatory Committee for Brussels Conference on Iraq, 2006.

League of Arab States

- 1. Head of the Permanent Legal Commission, 1982-1986
- 2. Member of the Arab League's Charter Amendment Committee
- 3. Lecturer at the Arab League Institute for Studies and Research
- 4. Member of the Iraqi Delegation to meetings of the summit conferences and meetings of Arab Foreign Ministers.

Tomas Heidar (Iceland)

Date and place of birth: 10 August 1962 in Reykjavik, Iceland

Professional work

Legal Adviser, Ministry for Foreign Affairs of Iceland, 1996-present

Chairman of the National Commission on Continental Shelf Limits, 2000-present

Vice-Chairman of the Negotiations Committee on Fisheries relating to the accession negotiations of Iceland with the European Union, 2009-2013

Chief Negotiator of Iceland on mackerel fisheries, 2009-2012

Commissioner of Iceland to the International Whaling Commission, 2009-2012

Deputy Legal Adviser, Ministry for Foreign Affairs of Iceland, 1996

Secretary to the National Commission on High Seas Fisheries, 1994-1995

Attorney at Law, Law Firm of Thorolfur Kristjan Beck, Fridjon Orn Fridjonsson and Tomas H. Heidar, Reykjavik, 1988-1992

Appointments

Conciliator under Annex V to the United Nations Convention on the Law of the Sea

Arbitrator under Annex VII to the United Nations Convention on the Law of the Sea

Member of the National Group for the purpose of nominating candidates for election to international courts and tribunals

Participation in international meetings and conferences

Numerous international meetings and conferences, including:

Head of Delegation to the Meetings of States Parties to the 1982 United Nations Convention on the Law of the Sea, 1997-present

Head of Delegation to the Informal Consultations of States Parties to the 1995 United Nations Fish Stocks Agreement, 2002-present

Head of Delegation to the Review Conference of the 1995 United Nations Fish Stocks Agreement, 2006 and 2010

Head of Delegation to meetings with the Commission on the Limits of the Continental Shelf and its Subcommission established to consider the submission of Iceland, 2013-2014

Head of Delegation to the meetings of the Open-ended Informal Consultative Process on Oceans and the Law of the Sea (UNICPOLOS), 2000-2007

Head of Delegation to the meetings of the Ad Hoc Open-ended Informal Working Group to study issues relating to the conservation and sustainable use of marine biological diversity beyond areas of national jurisdiction, 2006-present

Head of Delegation to the informal consultations for the negotiation of General Assembly resolutions on Oceans and the Law of the Sea and Sustainable Fisheries, 1997-present United Nations Conference on Straddling Fish Stocks and Highly Migratory Fish Stocks, 1994-1995

Head of Delegation at the negotiations of the FAO Agreement on Port State Measures to Prevent, Deter and Eliminate Illegal, Unreported and Unregulated Fishing, Rome, 2008-2009

Head of Delegation at the negotiations of the FAO International Guidelines for the Management of Deep-sea Fisheries in the High Seas, Rome, 2008

Meeting of the FAO Committee on Fisheries (COFI), Rome, 2007

Conference on the Governance of High Seas Fisheries and the United Nations Fish Stocks Agreement — Moving from Words to Action, organized by the Government of Canada with the support of the Law of the Sea Institute of Iceland, St. John's, Canada, 2005

Reykjavik Conference on Responsible Fisheries in the Marine Ecosystem, organized by the Government of Iceland and FAO, 2001

General Debate of the United Nations General Assembly on Oceans and the Law of the Sea, 1997-present

Sixth Committee of the United Nations General Assembly, 1997-present

Informal Meetings of Legal Advisers at the United Nations, 1997-present

Head of Delegation to the Assembly of States Parties to the Rome Statute on the International Criminal Court, 2002-2004

Head of Delegation to the United Nations Diplomatic Conference of Plenipotentiaries on the Establishment of an International Criminal Court (adoption of the Rome Statute), Rome, 1998

Head of Delegation to the Preparatory Commission for the Establishment of an International Criminal Court, 1996-1998

Fifth session of the Conference of the Parties to the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change, Bonn, 1999

Fourth session of the Conference of the Parties to the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change, Buenos Aires, 1998

Third session of the Conference of the Parties to the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change (adoption of the Kyoto Protocol), Kyoto, 1997

Annual Meetings of the International Whaling Commission (IWC), 2001-2003 and 2009-2011 (Head of Delegation 2009-2011)

Meetings of the Committee of Legal Advisers on Public International Law of the member States of the Council of Europe (CAHDI), 1996-present

Meetings of the Legal Advisers of the Ministries of Foreign Affairs of the Nordic countries, 1996-present

Annual Meetings of the OSPAR Commission (the OSPAR Convention for the Protection of the Marine Environment of the North-East Atlantic), 1997-present

Head of Delegation to the Annual Meeting of the North Atlantic Salmon Conservation Organization (NASCO), 1997

Annual Meetings of the North East Atlantic Fisheries Commission (NEAFC), 1997-2002

Annual Meetings of the Northwest Atlantic Fisheries Organization (NAFO), 1997-2002

Head of Delegation in the coastal States negotiations on mackerel fisheries in the North-East Atlantic, 2010-2012

Various meetings with the European Union on fisheries in preparation for accession negotiations, 2010-2011

Head of Delegation in the consultations with the United Kingdom, Ireland and Denmark/Faroe Islands on the continental shelf in the Hatton Rockall area, 2001-present

Head of Delegation in the negotiations with Denmark/Greenland on the delimitation of the continental shelf between Greenland and Iceland, 2012-2013

Head of Delegation in the negotiations with Norway and Denmark/Faroe Islands on the delimitation of the continental shelf between Iceland, Norway and the Faroe Islands, 2006

Head of Delegation in the negotiations with Denmark/Faroe Islands on the delimitation of the maritime area between Iceland and the Faroe Islands, 1996-2007

Head of Delegation in the negotiations with Denmark/Greenland on the delimitation of the maritime area between Iceland and Greenland, 1996-1997

Coastal States negotiations on Atlanto-Scandian herring fisheries in the North East Atlantic, 1996-2000

Negotiations with Norway and Russia on Barents Sea cod fisheries, 1994-1999

Academic activities

Director of the Law of the Sea Institute of Iceland, 2002-present

Co-Director and Lecturer of the Rhodes Academy of Oceans Law and Policy, 2003present

Lecturer, University of Iceland, Faculty of Law, 1998-present

Guest Lecturer, Reykjavik University, Faculty of Law

Guest Lecturer, University of Akureyri, Polar Law Institute

Guest Lecturer, University of Virginia School of Law

Member of the Board of the Polar Law Institute, University of Akureyri

Member of the Advisory Board of the Centre for Arctic Policy Studies, Institute of International Affairs, University of Iceland

Member of the Editorial Board of the Nordic Journal of International Law

Member of the Editorial Board of the Aegean Review of the Law of the Sea and Maritime Law

Member of the Board of Leifur Eiriksson Moot Court Club (for the participation of Icelandic law students in the Philip C. Jessup International Law Moot Court Competition), 2001-present

Writings and publications

Numerous writings and publications, including:

Delimitation of the Continental Shelf and Determination of the Outer Limits of the Continental Shelf beyond 200 Nautical Miles in Areas of Overlapping Claims: The Nordic Model (to be published), in *Liber Amicorum Satya N. Nandan*, 2014

Changes in the Arctic Environment and the Law of the Sea (co-editor with Nordquist and Moore), Martinus Nijhoff, 2010

The Legal Regime of the Arctic Ocean, in Zeitschrift für ausländisches öffentliches Recht und Völkerrecht (ZaöRV), Heidelberg Journal of International Law, Verlag W. Kohlhammer, 2009, and in New Chances and New Responsibilities in the Arctic Region, Berliner Wissenschafts-Verlag, 2010

The New Ocean Boundaries (Havets nye grænser, in Danish), Rotary Norden, 2008

Law, Science and Ocean Management (co-editor with Nordquist, Long and Moore), Martinus Nijhoff, 2007

The Three Cod Wars — the History of the Fisheries Zone Dispute 1948-1976 (Þorskastríðin þrjú — saga landhelgismálsins 1948-1976, in Icelandic) (editor and author of Prologue and Epilogue), Law of the Sea Institute of Iceland, 2006

Emerging UN Law of the Sea Issues, in *Recent Developments in the Law of the Sea and China*, Martinus Nijhoff, 2006

Legal and Scientific Aspects of Continental Shelf Limits (co-editor with Nordquist and Moore), Martinus Nijhoff, 2004

Legal Aspects of Continental Shelf Limits, in Legal and Scientific Aspects of Continental Shelf Limits, Martinus Nijhoff, 2004

Legal Status of the Continental Shelf and Delineation of the Icelandic Continental Shelf (Réttarstaða landgrunnsins, réttur strandríkja til landgrunns og afmörkun íslenska landgrunnsins, in Icelandic), in *Líndæla, Liber Amicorum Sigurður Líndal*, Hið íslenska bókmenntafélag, Iceland, 2001

Settlement of Fisheries and Maritime Delimitation Disputes with Neighbouring Countries (Lausn deilna við nágrannaríkin á sviði fiskveiða og hafréttar, in Icelandic), in *Sjávarsýn*, Njördur, Iceland, 1999

Lawmaking of Courts in European Community Law (Richterliche Rechtsfortbildung im Europäischen Gemeinschaftsrecht, in German), Europa Institut, 1994

Jurisdictional Immunities of States and their Property (Friðhelgi ríkja og eigna þeirra gagnvart lögsögu dómstóla annarra ríkja, in Icelandic), University of Iceland, 1988

Participation as a panellist in academic conferences

Numerous academic conferences and symposia, including:

Fourth International Symposium on Scientific and Legal Aspects of the Regimes of the Continental Shelf and the Area, organized by the China Institute for Marine Affairs and the Second Institute of Oceanography, Xiamen, 2014: presentation on Delimitation of the Continental Shelf and Determination of the Outer Limits of the Continental Shelf beyond 200 Nautical Miles in Disputed Areas: The Nordic Model

Fisheries Seminar — The Law of the Sea Convention and other Instruments and Initiatives, Brasilia, 2014: several lectures

Arctic Circle, 2013 Assembly, Reykjavik: presentation on *The Icelandic Continental* Shelf

Third International Symposium on Scientific and Legal Aspects of the Regimes of the Continental Shelf and the Area, organized by the China Institute for Marine Affairs and the Second Institute of Oceanography, Beijing, 2012: Chair of the session on *Issues Relevant to the Extended Continental Shelf and the Area* and Commentator of the session on *Recent Developments in the Extended Continental Shelf*

Changes in the Arctic Environment and the Law of the Sea, organized by the Center for Oceans Law and Policy of the University of Virginia, the Law of the Sea Institute of Iceland et al., Seward, Alaska, 2009: Moderator and Commentator of the panel *Continental Shelf Limits and Jurisdiction*

Symposium on Conservation of Fish Stocks and Illegal, Unreported and Unregulated Fishing, organized by the International Foundation for the Law of the Sea at the International Tribunal for the Law of the Sea, Hamburg, 2009: presentation on *Combating Illegal, Unreported and Unregulated Fishing: The Agreement on Port State Measures*

Conference on New Chances and New Responsibilities in the Arctic Region, organized by the German Federal Foreign Office in cooperation with the Foreign Ministries of Norway and Denmark, Berlin, 2009: presentation on *The Legal Regime of the Arctic Ocean*

The North Atlantic Coast Guard Forum 2009, Akureyri, Iceland: presentation on *The* Arctic from a Legal Point of View

Conference on Legal Challenges in Maritime Security, organized by the Center for Oceans Law and Policy of the University of Virginia et al., Heidelberg, 2007: Moderator of the panel on *Piracy*

Conference on Law, Science & Ocean Management, organized by the Center for Oceans Law and Policy of the University of Virginia, the Marine Institute of Ireland, the Martin Ryan Marine Science Institute of Ireland, the Marine Law and Ocean Policy Center of the National University of Ireland and the Law of the Sea Institute of Iceland, Dublin, 2006: Moderator of the panel on *Marine Biological Diversity*, *Genetic Resources and the Law of the Sea*

Conference on Recent Developments in the Law of the Sea and China, Center for Oceans Law and Policy of the University of Virginia, the Law of the Sea Institute of Iceland et al., Xiamen, China, 2005: presentation on *Emerging UN Law of the Sea Issues*

Conference on Legal and Scientific Aspects of Continental Shelf Limits, organized by the Center for Oceans Law and Policy of the University of Virginia and the Law of the Sea Institute of Iceland, Reykjavik, 2003: presentation on *Legal Aspects of Continental Shelf Limits*

Symposium on the Judgment of the International Tribunal for the Law of the Sea in the Case Bangladesh v. Myanmar, organized by the Law of the Sea Institute of Iceland, Reykjavik, 2012: Chair and Commentator

Symposium on Combating Illegal, Unreported and Unregulated Fishing, organized by the Law of the Sea Institute of Iceland, Reykjavik, 2008: Chair and Commentator

Symposium on the Legal Status of the Arctic Ocean — Who owns the North Pole?, organized by the Law of the Sea Institute of Iceland, Reykjavik, 2007: Chair and Commentator

Symposium on the Legal Basis of Whaling, organized by the Law of the Sea Institute of Iceland, Reykjavik, 2006: Chair and Commentator

Conference on the Three Cod Wars — on the Occasion of the 30th Anniversary of the Resolution of the Fisheries Zone Dispute, organized by the Law of the Sea Institute of Iceland, Reykjavik, 2006: Chair and Commentator

Symposium on the Conservation and Sustainable Use of Marine Biological Diversity, organized by the Law of the Sea Institute of Iceland, Reykjavik, 2006: Chair and Commentator

Symposium on the Svalbard Issue, organized by the Law of the Sea Institute of Iceland, Reykjavik, 2005: Chair and Commentator

Symposium on Petroleum Law and the Exploitation of Oil Resources in the North East Atlantic, organized by the Law of the Sea Institute of Iceland, Reykjavik, 2004: Chair and Commentator

Education

Europe Institute, University of Saarland, Saarbrücken, Germany: Certificate in European Studies (European Community law, public international law), 1993-1994

Academy of European Law, European University Institute, Fiesole, Italy: Summer course in European Community law, the law of human rights in Europe, and law and society, 1993

University of Copenhagen, Denmark: Courses in public international law, European Community law, competition law and intellectual property law, 1992-1993

Hague Academy of International Law, the Netherlands: Summer course in public international law, 1988

University of Iceland, Faculty of Law: Cand. jur. (B.A. + LL.M.), 1982-1988

Honours

Knight, First Class, of the Order of the Lion of Finland

Albertus Jacobus Hoffmann (South Africa)

Personal information

Date of birth:	18 May 1955, Vanderbijl Park, South Africa
Languages:	English, Afrikaans, basic German

Education

1979 B. PROC	University of Johannesburg, South Africa
1982 LL.B	University of Johannesburg, South Africa
1987 LL.M (cum laude)	University of Johannesburg, South Africa
1990 LL.M Programme	University of Pretoria (Course work: transnational business law, maritime law, international human rights law, international organizations)
2003 LL.M Programme	UNITAR/Columbia University, New York (Course work: Jurisprudence of War and International Humanitarian Law)

Current position

Judge, International Tribunal for the Law of the Sea, Hamburg, Germany (since 1 October 2005)

Vice-President, International Tribunal for the Law of the Sea, Hamburg, Germany (since 1 October 2011)

Previous positions

2005-2011	Member of the Seabed Disputes Chamber, ITLOS
2004-2006	Chief Director: Legal Affairs, Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Pretoria
1999-2003	Legal Adviser to the Permanent Mission of South Africa to the United Nations, New York
1992-1999	Chief State Law Adviser, Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Pretoria
1990-1991	Senior State Law Adviser, Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Pretoria
1983-1989	State Law Adviser, Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Pretoria
1980-1982	Articled clerk with firm of attorneys, Johannesburg
1978-1979	General Secretary to the Afrikaans Student Union and Student Press Union
1976-1977	Court and political reporter for a daily newspaper, Johannesburg
1974-1975	Law Clerk, Magistrate's Court, Johannesburg

Professional affiliations

- Advocate of the Supreme Court of South Africa
- Member of the South African Branch of the International Law Association

• Member of the Editorial Board of the South African Yearbook for International Law

Professional experience

- Advising the South African Government, government departments and institutions on international law and its application
- Providing overall direction, management and coordination of legal advice and services to the South African Ministry of Foreign Affairs
- Representing the South African Government in international, regional and bilateral negotiations on legal issues relating to foreign relations and policy
- Participating in international meetings, conferences, seminars and workshops on various topics of international law
- Representing the South African Government in international litigation and dispute settlement
- Drafting and negotiating international legal instruments
- Preparing legislation to give effect to South Africa's international obligations and commitments
- Briefing Parliamentary committees on legislation and the conclusion and ratification of international agreements
- Liaising with decision-makers, foreign government representatives, strategic partners, academic institutions, the legal profession, civil society and other role-players on matters of common interest and in pursuance of foreign policy objectives
- Contributing to the development and codification of international law
- Lecturing on topics in international law

Constitutional negotiations

Participated in constitutional and international negotiations, prior to 1994, that prepared the way for the transition to the new democratic order in South Africa.

Government negotiator of agreements with the United Nations High Commissioner for Refugees and other international agencies that facilitated the repatriation of refugees and the return of political exiles to South Africa.

Represented the Ministry of Foreign Affairs at the multiparty negotiations (CODESA) and the constitution-making process, dealing mainly with the reincorporation of the former homelands of Transkei, Bophuthatswana, Venda and Ciskei.

Advised a technical subcommittee of the Constitutional Assembly on the international law provisions of the new South African Constitution as well as on issues relating to South Africa's international borders and maritime boundaries.

Advised the Transitional Executive Council on transitional arrangements pending the entry into force of the Interim and Final Constitution.

Represented the former Government in the negotiations, constitutional processes, and preparations that led to the independence of Namibia.

Member of the negotiating team that set up a joint administration for Walvis Bay and the enclave's eventual transfer to Namibia, including the 12 so-called Penguin Islands.

International experience

Provided advice and technical support to the newly elected Government on South Africa's readmittance into the international community, its joining of a host of international organizations and the entering into a vast number of international treaties and agreements.

Represented the South African Government in international negotiations and conferences involving a wide range of issues and topics such as extradition, mutual legal assistance, cross border crime, investment protection, border disputes, diplomatic and consular law, Law of the Sea, Antarctica, maritime delimitation, sea fisheries, marine pollution, dumping at sea, maritime shipping, coastal zone management, international water law, environmental protection, transboundary movement of hazardous wastes, ozone depletion, international trade law, international criminal law, international humanitarian law, measures to combat international terrorism, United Nations law, etc.

Developed a special interest and expertise in oceans governance and the law of the sea.

Law of the Sea

- Adviser to the South African Government on matters pertaining to the law of the sea; instrumental in South Africa initially signing and later ratifying the United Nations Convention on the Law of the Sea (UNCLOS) and the Agreement relating to the Implementation of Part XI thereof (1984-1998)
- Coordinator of an interdepartmental committee that prepared the Maritime Zones Act and the Marine Living Resources Act to give effect to South Africa's international rights and obligations (1990-1999)
- South African representative to the Meetings of States Parties to UNCLOS and meetings of the Informal Consultative Process on Oceans and the Law of the Sea (1998-2005)
- Regular participant in the annual debate in the United Nations General Assembly on Oceans and the Law of the Sea and the drafting of the resolutions relating to this agenda item (1998-2005)

International Seabed Authority

- South African representative to the Assembly and Council of the International Seabed Authority (1999-2005)
- Member and Chairman of the Legal and Technical Commission of the International Seabed Authority (2002-2005)
- Member of the Finance Committee of the International Seabed Authority (1999-2002)

• Chairman of a Conciliation Committee established by the Secretary-General of the International Seabed Authority (2002-2005)

Sea fisheries

- Adviser to the South African Government on illegal fishing in South African waters and illegal, unreported and unregulated (IUU) fishing in the Southern Ocean (1998-2004)
- Instrumental in South Africa's acceptance of the United Nations Agreement relating to the Conservation and Management of Straddling Fish Stocks and Highly Migratory Fish Stocks and a participant in consultations between States Parties (1998-2004)
- Adviser and member of South African delegations to various fisheries and law of the sea related meetings, i.e. Southeast Atlantic Fisheries Organization, Conventions on the Conservation and Management of Fishery Resources in the Southern Indian Ocean and in the Southeast Atlantic Ocean, Agreement for the establishment of the Indian Ocean Tuna Commission, the International Convention for the Conservation of Atlantic Tunas, and the Convention on the Conservation of Antarctic Marine Living Resources (1986-1996)
- Represented the South African Government in bilateral fisheries commissions with Mozambique and Namibia (1985-1999)

Maritime boundaries and delimitation

- Adviser to the South African Government on the determination and delimitation of South Africa's maritime boundaries (1986-2005)
- Member of bilateral commissions concerning maritime boundary delimitation of the lateral boundary between South Africa/Namibia and South Africa/Mozambique (1986-1999)

Continental shelf

- Adviser to the South African Government on the extension of the outer limits of South Africa's continental shelf and on the preparation of a submission to the Commission for the Limits of the Continental Shelf (1999-2005)
- Participant in a training course on the establishment of the outer limits of the continental shelf organized by the Brazilian Government (2002)

Marine pollution

- Adviser and member of the South African delegation to the annual meetings of the London Convention on the Prevention of Marine Pollution by Dumping of Waste and other Matter at Sea (1985-1992)
- Adviser to the South African Government on the passage through South African waters of foreign vessels transporting nuclear material and radioactive wastes (1996-1999)

Water resources

- Adviser and member of a South African delegation that negotiated the Treaty to the Lesotho Highlands Water Project for the transfer of water from the highlands of Lesotho to the Vaal River system in South Africa (1987-1990)
- Member of a joint commission between South Africa and Namibia on the utilization of water from the Orange River (1994-1996)

International boundaries

- Adviser to the South African Government on the establishment of South Africa's international boundaries and on matters relating to boundary issues with neighbouring States (1985-1999)
- Member of the South African International Boundaries Commission (1985-1999)
- Member of the Joint South African/Swaziland Boundary Commission (2004-2005)

Antarctica

- Adviser and South African representative to the Antarctic Treaty Consultative Meetings and the Special Sessions for the elaboration of the Protocol for the protection of the Antarctic environment (1987-1998)
- Participant in the negotiations for the development of a liability regime for damage arising from activities taking place in Antarctica (1994-1998)
- Member of the Antarctic Management Committee that is responsible for the management and coordination of South Africa's involvement in Antarctica (1987-1998)

Sixth Committee

South African representative to the annual sessions of the Sixth Committee of the United Nations General Assembly dealing with all items on its agenda (1993-2003)

International criminal tribunals

Adviser to the South African Government on the work of the International Criminal Tribunals for Rwanda and the former Yugoslavia as well as on the establishment of the Special Court for Sierra Leone (1998-2003)

International Criminal Court

Member of the South African delegation to the Preparatory Commission for the establishment of the International Criminal Court and the First Assembly of States Parties (1999-2003)

International terrorism

• Adviser to the South African Government on United Nations initiatives to combat international terrorism (1997-2005)

- South African representative to the Ad Hoc Committee established by the General Assembly on measures to eliminate international terrorism (2002-2005)
- Vice-Chairman and African Group representative in the Bureau of the Ad Hoc Committee (2002-2005)
- Coordinator of consultations in the Ad Hoc Committee and in a working group of the Sixth Committee on outstanding issues which led to the adoption of the draft Convention for the Suppression of Acts of Nuclear Terrorism (2002-2004)

Publications, presentations and lectures

"The Regime of Islands in International law with special reference to the South African islands off the coast of Namibia" — thesis published in Afrikaans, 1987

"The relevance of South Africa's islands in the generation of maritime zones" — paper presented at the National Maritime Conference, Cape Town, 1988

Prince Edward Islands: Historical and legal background — chapter in a feasibility study for the proposed construction of a landing strip on Marion Island, 1989

Numerous legal opinions and briefings on the sovereignty of Walvis Bay and the Penguin Islands and the issues relating to the generation and delimitation of maritime zones, 1989-1997

Regular lectures on topics of International law, Law of the Sea and South African law to the Foreign Service Institute and other government departments in South Africa, 1989-1999

"Integrated approach to the protection and preservation of the marine environment and to the conservation and management of its resources from a developing country perspective" — presentation on a discussion panel during the Third Meeting of the United Nations Informal Consultative Process on Oceans and the Law of the Sea, New York, 2002

"Aspects of the draft regulations on prospecting and exploration for polymetallic sulphides and cobalt-rich ferromanganese crusts relating to the protection of the International Seabed environment" — paper presented at a Workshop organized by the International Seabed Authority for the establishment of environmental baselines at deep seafloor cobalt-rich crust and deep seabed polymetallic sulphide mine sites in the Area for the purpose of evaluating the likely effects of exploration and exploitation on the marine environment, Kingston, Jamaica, 2004

"The Role of the United Nations in the combating of International Terrorism" — lectures for LL.M students, University of Johannesburg, South Africa, 2004-2007

"Resources of the Seabed and Subsoil: Issues and Options" — paper presented at an international workshop organized by the Argentine Council for Foreign Relations, Buenos Aires, Argentina, 2006

Co-author of the Report on the Review of the South African National Antarctic Programme and member of the Review Panel commissioned by the National Research Foundation (NRF) on behalf of the Department of Science and Technology, 2007 "UNCLOS and the Resources of the Seabed in Areas beyond national jurisdiction" — paper presented at an international workshop organized by the Taiwan Ocean University, Taipei, Taiwan, 2007

Guest Lecturer on Law of the Sea and Maritime Boundary Delimitation Issues, Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Tokyo, Japan, 2007

Senior Lecturer, courses in Advanced and Applied International Law, Faculty of Law, University of Pretoria, South Africa, 2007-2011

"Dispute Settlement under UNCLOS and the specific problems relating to the International Seabed" — lectures at the Nippon Foundation/ITLOS Capacity building and Training Programme, Hamburg, Germany, 2007, 2008

Teaching courses in Public International Law and Law of the Sea as part of a Master's Programme in International Law and Settlement of Disputes, University for Peace, San Jose, Costa Rica, 2008

"The Law of the Sea and the Resources of the Seabed in Areas beyond National Jurisdiction" — keynote address at UNEP/University of Joensuu/UKZN Course in International Environmental Law-making and Diplomacy, University of KwaZulu-Natal, South Africa, 2008

Contributor to the Max Planck Encyclopedia of Public International Law, 2008-2009

"Urgent Proceedings before the International Tribunal for the Law of the Sea" — presentations made at a Regional Workshop on International Dispute Settlement jointly organized by the SA Government, ITLOS and the Friedrich Ebert Stiftung for government representatives and experts of the Southern African Development Community (SADC), Cape Town, South Africa, 2009

"International Law in the Contemporary World: The Law of the Sea, Settlement of Mixed Maritime Delimitation Disputes and the Challenges faced in the Asia-Pacific Region" — paper presented at the International Law Association Asia-Pacific Regional Conference, Taipei, Taiwan, 2011

"Progress on the Work of the International Tribunal for the Law of the Sea" — keynote address at an International Symposium on Scientific and Legal Aspects of the Regimes of the Continental Shelf and the Area, Hangzhou, China, 2011

"Law of the Sea — responses to Piracy: International Legal Challenges" — paper presented at a Special Session of the Asian-African Legal Consultative Organization (AALCO) during its 51st Annual Session, Abuja, Nigeria, 2012

"International Adjudication: Roles and Challenges" — guest lecture given at the Graduate School of International Studies, Seoul National University, Republic of Korea, 2012

Lecturer, selected topics on Law of the Sea, Rhodes Academy of Ocean Law and Policy, 17th and 18th Sessions, Rhodes, Greece, 2012-2013

María Teresa Infante Caffi (Chile)

Education

1988	The Hague Academy of International Law, The Hague, The Netherlands
	– Research activities
1976-1979	Institut de hautes études internationales et du développement, Geneva, Switzerland
	– International Law
1974-1975	Universidad Complutense de Madrid, Madrid, Spain
	– International Law
1974	The Hague Academy of International Law, The Hague, The Netherlands
	– Research activities
1968-1974	Universidad de Chile, Escuela de Derecho, Santiago, Chile
	– Law Degree, 1973
	– Lawyer, 1974
Academic and professional work	
1997-to-date	National Director
	Division of Frontiers and Limits, Ministry of Foreign Affairs.
	On secondment to the Ministry of Foreign Affairs Team for the

On secondment to the Ministry of Foreign Affairs Team for the defence of Chile in the "Maritime Dispute" case submitted by Peru to the International Court of Justice

2008-to-date Co-director of the Master's Program on International Law, Investment, Trade and Arbitration

Offered jointly by the University of Heidelberg and the University of Chile, Santiago — Heidelberg

2010 (August) Visiting Professor

Winter Program on International Law, Universidade de Minas Gerais, Belo Horizonte, Brazil

2004 Visiting Professor

Bancaja Euromediterranean Courses of International Law, Centro Internacional Bancaja para la Paz y el Desarrollo and Universitat Jaume I, Castellón, Spain

1996, 2001 Visiting Professor

Universidad Nacional de Córdoba, Argentina

1993, 1994, 1995, 2001,	
2002, 2005	Member of the delegation of Chile
	Antarctic Consultative Meetings and Group of Legal Experts on Liability
1993-1995	Member of the Board of the University of Chile
1991	Visiting Professor
	Inter-American Juridical Committee, Rio de Janeiro, Brazil, and for the External Program, The Hague Academy of International Law, Santiago, Chile
1990-1995	Co-editor of ESTUDIOS
	Yearbook of the Chilean Society for International Law
1987-1994	Director
	Institute of International Studies, University of Chile
1987, 1989, 1993	Visiting Professor
	Catholic University of Perú, Master's Program on International Economic Law
1980-1982	Member of the delegation of Chile
	Third United Nations Conference on the Law of the Sea

Participated in research programs and advisory functions with the following institutions, inter alia: Permanent Commission for the South Pacific; Chilean Ministry of Foreign Affairs; United Nations Development Programme (UNDP); National Commission for the Environment.

Participated also in diplomatic negotiations with neighbouring countries on integration, boundaries, international law and frontier cooperation policies.

Academic associations

Member, Second Vice-President 2013-2015
Associate Member
Institut de Droit International
International Law Association
Member — International Committee of the International Law Association on Baselines
Member
International Committee of the International Law Association on the Continental Shelf

1992-2000	Member
	International Committee of the International Law Association "Coastal State Jurisdiction over Marine Pollution"
2003-to-date	President
1994-1997	Chilean Society of International Law
1991-1998	Member
	Executive Board of the Law of the Sea Institute, Hawaii, USA
1985-to-date	Member
	Hispanic-Luso American Institute of International Law, Spain

Publications

"Los espacios marítimos en el Código Civil chileno. La reforma de 1986", Revista de Derecho, Universidad Católica de Chile, 1989, pp. 493-509

"La cuestión Antártica", Anuario de Políticas Exteriores Latinoamericanas, Caracas, Nueva Sociedad, 1991, pp. 412-423

"The applicability of maritime conventions to Antarctica", *International Environmental Law for Antarctica*, ed. F. Francioni, Milano, Giuffrè, 1992, pp. 135-148

"Maritime Conventions in Antarctica", German Yearbook of International Law. 1992, pp. 249-263

El Medio Ambiente en la Minería, ed. R. Díaz, M. T. Infante, S. Pimentel, Santiago, Instituto de Estudios Internacionales, 1993

"La legislación nacional de Chile y la Convención de las Naciones Unidas sobre el Derecho del Mar", *Pacífico Sur*, 1994, pp. 113-121

"Straits in Latin America. The case of the Strait of Magellan", Ocean Development and International Law, 1995, pp. 175-187

"Solución de controversias en el marco de la Convención de las Naciones Unidas sobre el Derecho del Mar: el Tribunal Internacional del Derecho del Mar", *Solución Judicial de controversias*, M. T. Infante & R. Cave, eds. Santiago, Instituto de Estudios Internacionales, 1995, pp. 123-145

"Uso de la fuerza y derecho internacional humanitario". Compiladora. Serie de Publicaciones Especiales No. 77. M. T. Infante, 1995, p. 80

"Chilean Antarctic Policy: The influence of domestic and foreign policy", Governing the Antarctic, O. S. Stokke & D. Vidas, eds., Cambridge University Press, 1996, pp. 361-383

"Issues of jurisdiction in polar oceans: flag and coastal State jurisdiction and pollution control in Antarctica", The Fridtjof Nansen Institute, POLOS Report No. 4/1996

"Perspectivas regionales ante el Derecho Internacional: reflexiones acerca de las tendencias actuales", El Derecho Internacional como Lenguaje de las Relaciones Internacionales, Proceedings of the United Nations Congress on Public International

Law, New York, 13-17 March 1995, The Hague, Kluwer Law International, 1996, pp. 45-57

"Los tratados en el derecho interno chileno: el efecto de la reforma constitucional de 1989 visto por la jurisprudencia". Revista Chilena de Derecho, Pontificia Universidad Católica de Chile, 23, 1996, pp. 277-297. Héctor Gros Espiell Liber Amicorum Persona Humana y Derecho Internacional, Bruselas, Editions Bruylant, S.A.

Co-redactora informe "Chile y Naciones Unidas", Estudios Internacionales, XXIX, 1996, 114, pp. 245-264

"Solución de controversias en un marco de libre comercio: Chile-Canadá". Instituto de Estudios Internacionales, 1997, pp. 28-44

"Integración física: alcances de un interés permanente". Estudios Internacionales No. 118, año XXX, 1997 abril-junio, pp. 195-215

"La posición de Canadá en el Caso Terranova y los conflictos de pesqueros en alta mar". Centro de Estudios Estratégicos de la Armada de Chile. 1997, pp. 31-39

"Conflictos armados en el mar: el derecho internacional aplicable: el Manual de San Remo". (Colección Estudios Internacionales). Instituto de Estudios Internacionales. Chile. 1998, pp. 64-77, in: Nuevos Estudios de derecho Internacional humanitario, edited by María Teresa Infante & Rose Cave

"Procesos de integración y protección del medio ambiente: el caso del MERCOSUR". (Roma e America: Diritto Romano Comune. No. 4, 1997, pp. 209-224. Separata.

"Responsabilidad en Antártica: los problemas derivados de la protección del medio ambiente", in Primer Seminario sobre Política Exterior y Medio Ambiente. Santiago, Ministerio de Relaciones Exteriores, 1-2 de octubre 1998, pp. 297-303

"Chile participa en la Convención de las Naciones Unidas sobre el Derecho del Mar: Alcances y Oportunidades", Los cincuenta años de la tesis chilena de las doscientas millas marinas (1947-1997), ed. by H. Llanos Mansilla. Santiago, Universidad Central de Chile, Facultad de Ciencias Jurídicas y Sociales, 1998, pp. 59-83

"Polar Marine Environment and Resources", Poles Apart, ed. A. Lewkovsky, University of Ottawa, 1998, pp. 131-141

"El Tratado Minero entre Chile y Argentina", Estudios Internacionales, No. 135, 2001, pp. 22-42

"La Corte Penal Internacional ante el derecho chileno", Revista de Derecho de la Universidad Finis Terrae, 2002, No. 6, pp. 269-284

"Problemas que enfrentan las mujeres en conflictos armados y el alcance de los instrumentos internacionales para protegerlas. Acciones para mejorar dichos instrumentos". Informe Final Conferencia el Rol de la Mujer en las Operaciones de Paz. Conferencia Conjunta — Unión Europea, Latino América y el Caribe), Santiago de Chile, 4-5 de noviembre de 2002. LOM, 2003, pp. 51-59

"El Sistema Antártico", Bancaja Euromediterranean Courses of International Law, Centro Internacional Bancaja para la Paz y el Desarrollo, Castellón, Spain, Vol. VIII-IX, 2004-2005, pp. 281-341 "Modalidades de Integración en América Latina", París, Association Andrés Bello des Juristes Franco-Latino-Américains, 2005. Published in Constitución e Integración, ed. Myriam Salcedo Castro, Bogotá, Universidad Nacional del Rosario-Banco Interamericano de Desarrollo, 2006, pp. 32-49

"Política antártica chilena: nuevas realidades", Estudios Internacionales, octubrediciembre 2006, pp. 37-51

"La Protección del Medio Ambiente en el Comercio: el Rol del Derecho Internacional". Presentation: Seminario Iberoamérica ante los Retos del Derecho Internacional en el Siglo XXI, Universidad de Salamanca, 10-11 octubre de 2005. Estudios de Derecho Internacional, Homenaje a Santiago Benadava, eds. H. Llanos & E. Picand, Santiago, Librotecnia, 2008, vol. I, pp. 185-206

"Evolving scenarios: Antarctica and the continental shelf", Mélanges de Droit de la mer oferts à Daniel Vignes, ed. Rafael Casado Raigón & Giuseppe Cataldi, Bruxelles, Editions Bruylant, S.A., 2009, pp. 461-479

"Derecho del mar y Antártica. El impacto de la plataforma continental", Diplomacia, 2009, No. 120, pp. 79-97

"The outer continental shelf and South American coastal States". Law, technology and science for oceans in globalisation: IUU fishing, oil pollution, bioprospecting, outer continental shelf, ed. Davor Vidas, Leiden: Martinus Nijhoff, 2010, pp. 577-590

"Medio ambiente y zonas polares: la zona antártica". Derecho Internacional del Medio Ambiente: Una visión desde Iberoamérica, ed. Francesco Sindico, Rosa Fernández Egea & Susana Borrás Pentinat, London, CMP Publishing Ltd., 2011, pp. 479-500

"The Altiplano Silala (Siloli): A Watercourse under Scrutiny". Coexistence, Cooperation and Solidarity. Liber Amicorum Rüdiger Wolfrum, vol. I, ed. Holger Hestermeyer et al., Leiden, Martinus Nijhoff Publishers, 2012, pp. 901-917

Boundary Disputes in Latin America, Max Planck Encyclopedia of Public International Law, May 2011. Updated February 2013

"Current developments on State Responsibility and Liability in the Ares", with J. J. Gorostegui Obanoz, Anuário Brasileiro de Direito Internacional, 1, No. 10, 2011, pp. 237-249

"El Acta de Ejecución de 1999 y los acuerdos con el Perú", Estudios de derecho internacional: libro en homenaje al profesor Hugo Llanos Mansilla. Santiago, Legal Publishing Chile: Thomson Reuters, 2012, pp. 397-439

"Antártica en la legislación interna de los Estados: ¿qué hay de nuevo?", El derecho internacional en el mundo multipolar del Siglo XXI : obra en homenaje al profesor Luis Ignacio Sánchez Rodríguez/Iprolex: Universidad del País Vasco: Universidad Complutense de Madrid, Facultad de Derecho, 2013, pp. 425-444

Reviews of publications

"Chile y Bolivia en cuatro obras", Estudios Internacionales, año 38, No. 148 (enero/marzo 2005), pp. 95-100

"René Millar Carvacho: "Pasión de Servicio. Julio Philippi Izquierdo", (book review) en: Estudios públicos, ISSN 0716-1115, No. 101, 2006, pp. 339-354 http://dialnet.unirioja.es/servlet/articulo?codigo=1994177

"Joaquín Fermandois: La Revolución inconclusa" (book review) in Estudios Públicos, 2013. In press

Languages

Spanish, French and English

James Luta Kateka (United Republic of Tanzania)

Born

29 April 1945 in Karagwe District, Tanzania

Education

Bachelor of Laws with Honours, University College Dar es Salaam of the University of East Africa (1970)

Master of Laws (International law), King's College, University of London (1974)

Present position

Judge of the International Tribunal for the Law of the Sea (ITLOS) (2005-2014)

Professional experience

Judge ad hoc of the International Court of Justice in the case concerning Armed Activities on the Territory of the Congo (Democratic Republic of the Congo v. Uganda 2003-2005)

Arbitrator in the arbitration between the Republic of Mauritius and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland (2011-)

Elected by the United Nations General Assembly as a Member of the United Nations International Law Commission (1997-2006)

ILC Vice Chairman (2002)

Chairman of the Drafting Committee (2003)

As ILC member, participated actively in the Commission's work that led to the adoption of draft articles on: (i) Nationality of Natural Persons in relation to the Succession of States, adopted at the 51st session (1999) (ii) Responsibility of States for Internationally wrongful Acts, adopted at the 53rd session (2001) (iii) Prevention of transboundary harm from Hazardous Activities, adopted at the 53rd session (2006) (v) Allocation of loss in the case of transboundary harm arising out of hazardous activities, adopted at the 58th session (2006)

Also contributed effectively to the Commission's work that led to the adoption of: (i) Guiding Principles applicable to Unilateral declarations of States capable of creating legal obligations, at the 58th session (2006) (ii) Conclusions of the Work of the Study Group on the fragmentation of international law: difficulties arising from the diversification and expansion of international law, at the 58th session (2006)

Partner in the law firm of South Law Chambers, Dar es Salaam

Advocate of the High Court

Director (Legal Adviser), Legal Department of the Ministry of Foreign Affairs (1983-1989)

Ambassador of Tanzania to the Federal Republic of Germany (1989-1994) with concurrent accreditation to Austria, the Holy See, Poland, Romania and Switzerland

Ambassador to the Russian Federation (1994-1998)

Ambassador to Sweden (1998-2005) with concurrent accreditation to the other Nordic countries of Denmark, Finland, Norway and Iceland and to the Baltic Republics of Estonia, Latvia and Lithuania

Dean of the diplomatic corps, Stockholm (2003-2005)

Dean of Tanzania's Ambassadors (2004-2005)

Head (Minister Plenipotentiary), Treaties Section of the Ministry of Foreign Affairs (1980-1983)

Legal Adviser, Tanzania Mission to the UN in New York (1976-1980)

Head of the Legal Section (1973-1975) of the Ministry of Foreign Affairs

Legal Officer in the Protocol and Treaties Division (1970-1973), Ministry of Foreign Affairs

Membership

Institut de Droit international since 2009

American Society of International Law since 2005

British Institute of International and Comparative Law since 2006

UNEP Group of Experts on Environmental Dispute Avoidance and Settlement (1998-1999)

UNEP Meeting of Experts on Liability and Compensation for Environmental Damage, Geneva (2002)

Conferences and meetings

Presentation on "Piracy and Armed Robbery" at the 18th Commonwealth Law Conference in Cape Town, 14 to 18 April, 2013

Participated in the Law of the Sea Institute (LOSI) Conference on "Securing the Ocean for the next Generation" in Seoul, Republic of Korea, 21 to 24 May 2012

Attended LOSI Conference on "Institutions and regions in Ocean Governance" in Hamburg, Germany, 5th to 6th October 2010

Participated in International Symposium on Scientific and legal aspects of the Regimes of the continental shelf and the Area in Beijing, China, 27th to 28th May 2010

Participated in deliberations of the United Nations Committee on the Peaceful Uses of the Seabed and the Ocean Floor beyond the Limits of National Jurisdiction (1971-1973)

Delegate to the Third UN Conference on the Law of the Sea (1973-1982)

Representative to the Sixth (Legal) Committee of the United Nations General Assembly (1976-1988 and 1996)

Delegate to the UN Preparatory Commission for the International Seabed Authority and the International Tribunal for the Law of the Sea in Kingston, Jamaica (1983-1994) Delegate to the Nairobi Conference that adopted the Convention for the Protection, Management and Development of the Marine Environment of the Eastern African Region (1985)

Delegate, Commonwealth Heads of Government Meeting, New Delhi (1983)

United Nations Conference on Women, Nairobi (1985)

25th session of the Asian African Legal Consultative Committee, Arusha (1985)

Rapporteur, Ad hoc Committee on International Terrorism (1977-1979)

Head of delegation to the Diplomatic Conference on Territorial Asylum in Geneva (1977)

Representative, in the Special Committee on the Charter (1976-1980)

Delegate, at UNCITRAL sessions (1976-1980)

Delegate, in the ad hoc Committee on the Indian Ocean as a zone of peace (1976-1980)

Representative, in the ad hoc committee against the taking of hostages (1976-1980)

Delegate, in the non-use of force committee (1976-1980)

Delegate to the first and second special sessions of the United Nations General Assembly on Disarmament (1978 and 1982 respectively)

Delegate, Conference that adopted the Vienna Convention on Succession of States in respect of Treaties (1977-1978)

Acting Chairman, (1976) United Nations Sanctions Committee on Southern Rhodesia under Security Council resolution 253 (1968)

Delegate to the Stockholm Conference on the Human Environment (1972)

Delegate, London Conference on the Anti-Dumping Convention (1972)

Delegate, Conference that adopted the Marine Pollution Convention (1973)

Publications and lectures

Written articles and chapters for various legal publications and delivered lectures on international law covering, inter alia, the law of the sea, environmental law, human rights and the UN International Law Commission. Publications include:

"Land-locked and Geographically Disadvantaged States", *IMLI Manual on International Maritime Law, Volume I (March 2014)*

"Africa and the International Tribunal for the Law of the Sea" in L'Afrique et le droit internationalL: variations sur l'organisation international (Africa and International Law: Reflections on the international Organisation) — Liber Amicorum Raymond Ranjeva, edited by Maurice Kamga and Makane M Mbengue (2013)

"Advisory Proceedings before the Seabed Disputes Chamber and before the ITLOS as a Full Court", *Max Planck Yearbook of United Nations Law*, Volume 17, 2013

"Piracy and Armed Robbery" in *Essays in Honour of Judge Anatoliy L Kolodkin*, (2013)

"Protection and Preservation of the Marine Environment in the Area under UNCLOS" in *Coexistence, Cooperation and Solidarity — Liber Amicorum Rudiger Wolfrum*, edited by Holger P Hestermeyer, Doris Koenig, Nele Matz-Lueck, Volker Roeben, Anja Seibert-Fohr, Peter-Tobias Stoll and Silja Voeneky (2011)

"Landlocked Developing Countries and the Law of the Sea" in *International Law* between Universalism and Fragmentation-Festschrift Gerhard Hafner, edited by Isabelle Buffard, James Crawford, Alain Pellet and Stephen Wittich (2008)

"Diplomatic Protection" in *The Protection of the Individual in International Law* — *Essays in Honour of John Dugard*, edited by Thomas Skouteris and Annemarieke Vermeer-Kunzli (2007)

"The Forty Ninth Session of the United Nations International Law Commission" in *African Yearbook of International Law (AYIL)*, Volume 5 (1997)

"The Fiftieth Session of the ILC" in *AYIL* volume 6 (1998); "The Fifty-first Session of the ILC" in *AYIL* volume 7 (1999)

"The Fifty-second Session of the ILC" in *AYIL* volume 8 (2000); "The Fifty-third Session of the ILC" in *AYIL* volume 9 (2001)

"The Tanzania National Report", in Legal Aspects of Protecting and Managing the Marine and Coastal Environment of the Eastern African Region, UNEP Regional Seas Reports, No. 49, 1984

Paper presented at the International Seminar on the Experience of Different Countries in the Implementation of international standards on Human Rights, Geneva, 20 June-1 July 1983, published in United Nations Doc. HR/GENEVA/1983/ WP.23

Distinctions

Awarded the Papal Honour of the Grand Cross with the Star of the Order of Pius the Ninth in 1993 by Pope John Paul II.

L. Dolliver M. Nelson (Grenada)

Member of the Tribunal since 1 October 1996; re-elected as from 1 October 2005 Vice-President of the Tribunal 1999-2002; President of the Tribunal 2002-2005

Sauteurs, Grenada, 27 June 1932

Education

Born

B.A., University of the West Indies (1954)

LL.M., London School of Economics (1964)

Ph.D., London School of Economics (1969)

Barrister-at-Law, Gray's Inn, London (1971)

admitted to the Bar of Grenada (1972)

LL.D. honoris causa, University of the West Indies (2006)

Professional experience

Lecturer in Law, London School of Economics (1970-1977)

Law of the Sea Officer (1974-1976), Senior Law of the Sea Officer (1976-1984), Deputy-Director (1984-1994), Office of Legal Affairs, Division for Ocean Affairs and the Law of the Sea

Secretary, Drafting Committee of the Third United Nations Conference on the Law of the Sea (1974-1982)

Visiting Professor at Dalhousie University, Halifax, Canada (1980)

Executive Secretary, Preparatory Commission for the International Seabed Authority and for the International Tribunal for the Law of the Sea (1983-1994)

acted as Legal Adviser in the United Nations Secretary-General's informal consultations on deep seabed mining issues, which concluded in 1994 with the adoption of the Agreement relating to the implementation of Part XI of the United Nations Convention on the Law of the Sea (1990-1994)

Secretary, Conference on Straddling Fish Stocks and Highly Migratory Fish Stocks (1993-1994)

Visiting Professor of International Law, London School of Economics (1995-2003)

lectured on aspects of the law of the sea in several institutions and actively participated in numerous seminars and workshops in various parts of the world

President, Annex VII Tribunal (Guyana/Suriname) (2004-2007)

Member

Committee on Legal Issues of the Outer Continental Shelf, International Law Association (Chairman 2000-2006)

Editorial Board, Marine Policy (1993-present)

Committee on Coastal State Jurisdiction relating to Marine Pollution, International Law Association (1992-2000)

research team responsible for the Commentary on the UN Convention on the Law of the Sea, Center for Oceans Law and Policy, University of Virginia (1984-1994)

Committee on the Exclusive Economic Zone (EEZ), International Law Association (Rapporteur 1982-1989)

Committee on the Law of the Sea, International Law Association (1974-1980)

American Society of International Law (1970-present, Counsellor 2006-2009)

Editorial Board, International Maritime Law (2004-present)

Committee on Baselines under the International Law of the Sea, International Law Association (2008-present, Chairman 2008-2012)

Publications

Contributed to various international legal periodicals and publications, including The British Year Book of International Law, The American Journal of International Law, The International and Comparative Law Quarterly, The Modern Law Review, The Netherlands International Law Review, The Indian Journal of International Law and The Max Planck Encyclopedia of Public International Law; to the following Festschriften:

International Law at a Time of Perplexity — Essays in Honour of Shabtai Rosenne, 1988

Liber Amicorum Guenther Jaenicke — zum 85. Geburtstag, 1998

Liber Amicorum Judge Shigeru Oda, 2002

Liber Amicorum Judge Thomas A. Mensah, 2007

Liber Amicorum Judge Rüdiger Wolfrum, 2011

The Regulation of International Shipping: International and Comparative Perspectives, Essays in Honor of Edgar Gold, 2012

Honours

Fiftieth Anniversary Distinguished Graduate Award, University of the West Indies, 1998

Jin-Hyun Paik (Republic of Korea)

Born

1 February 1958, Republic of Korea

Current position

Judge, International Tribunal for the Law of the Sea (ITLOS)

Professor of International Law, Seoul National University, Korea

Education

1980 LL.B., Faculty of Law, Seoul National University, Korea

1983 LL.M., Columbia Law School, USA

1989 Ph.D., Faculty of Law, University of Cambridge, UK (International Law)

Thesis: "The Development and Application of Rules for the Delimitation of the Continental Shelf with Particular Reference to the Maritime Boundary Disputes in the East China Sea"

Experience

	Attorney-at-law (Member of New York Bar)
1985	Doctoral Scholarship Fellow (Bourses de Doctorat), Hague Academy of International Law, the Netherlands
1989-1997	Professor, Institute of Foreign Affairs and National Security, Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Korea
1990-1993	Legal Advisor to the Korean Delegation to the negotiations for Mutual Legal Assistance Treaties/Extradition Treaties with Canada, United States, Brazil, Thailand, Indonesia, and Australia
1990-1994	Legal Advisor to the Korean Delegation to the Preparatory Commission for the International Seabed Authority and International Tribunal for the Law of the Sea (8th-12th sessions)
1990-2009	Chairman, Research Committee, Sea Lanes of Communication (SLOC) Study Group, Korea
1991-1992	Chairman, Asian Group of the G-77, Preparatory Commission for the International Seabed Authority and International Tribunal for the Law of the Sea
1992	Member of the Korean Delegation to the United Nations Special Committee on Peacekeeping Operation
1992-1997	Legal Advisor to the Korean Delegation to the negotiations for Fishery Agreements with China, Japan, and for the Central Bering Sea

1993-1994	Legal Advisor to the Korean Delegation to the United Nations Secretary-General's informal consultations on the Law of the Sea (5th-8th sessions)
1993-1995	Member of the Korean Delegation to the United Nations General Assembly (6th Committee; 48th-50th sessions)
1994-2008	Member, Council for Security Cooperation in the Asia-Pacific (CSCAP), Maritime Cooperation Working Group
1994-1997	Member, Presidential Commission on Policy Planning, Korea
1995	Legal Advisor to the Korean Delegation to the Assembly of International Seabed Authority
1997-now	Professor of International Law, Graduate School of International Studies, Seoul National University, Korea
1999-2000	Member, Advisory Committee to National Security Council, Korea
2000	Visiting Fellow, RAND Corporation, USA
2000-2002	Member, Advisory Committee to Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Trade, Korea
2003, 2005-07	Associate Dean, Graduate School of International Studies (GSIS), Seoul National University, Korea
2003-2004	Visiting Fellow to Stanford University's Hoover Institution and Visiting Professor to Johns Hopkins University's Paul Nitze School of Advanced International Studies (SAIS), USA
2006-2008	Director, SNU-KIEP European Union (EU) Center, Seoul National University, Korea
2006-now	President, Haesung Institute for Ethics in International Affairs, Korea
2008-2011	President, Korean Council on the United Nations System (KACUNS)
2008-2010	Director, Institute of International Affairs (IIA), Seoul National University, Korea
2009-now	Judge, International Tribunal for the Law of the Sea (ITLOS)
2010-2012	Dean, Graduate School of International Studies (GSIS), Seoul National University, Korea
2010-now	President, Sea Lanes of Communication (SLOC) Study Group, Korea

Membership

Executive Board, Korean Society of International Law

Executive Committee, Asian Society of International Law

American Society of International Law

European Society of International Law

Advisory Board, Foundation for the Development of International Law in Asia (DILA)

International Advisory Panel, Center for International Law (CIL), Singapore

Editorial Committee, Korean Journal of International and Comparative Law (1991-2009)

Editorial Board, International Studies Review (2001-2009)

Editor-in-Chief, Journal of International and Area Studies (2008-2010)

Selected publications

13 monographs and over 100 articles in academic journals in English and Korean on the law of the sea, international law and organization, and Korea's foreign and security policy

Books (English and Korean)

Maritime Issues in the 1990s: Antarctica, Law of the Sea and Marine Environment, Jin-Hyun Paik and others (eds.), Seoul Press, 1992

Exploring Maritime Cooperation in Northeast Asia: Possibility and Prospect, Jin-Hyun Paik and Others (eds.), Seoul Press, 1993

Ocean Affairs in Northeast Asia and Prospects for Korea-China Cooperation, Jin-Hyun Paik and Jiao Yongke (eds.), Seoul Press, 1994

Marine Policy, Maritime Security and Ocean Diplomacy in the Asia-Pacific, Jin-Hyun Paik and others (eds.), Seoul Press, 1995

UN Convention on the Law of the Sea and East Asia, Jin-Hyun Paik and others (eds.), Seoul Press, 1996

Conflict and Order at Sea, Jin-Hyun Paik and others (eds.), Seoul Press, 1999

Compliance with Multilateral Environmental Agreements: with Particular Reference to the London Protocol, Jin-Hyun Paik and Ki-hoon Hong, Seoul Press, 2006 (in Korean)

Nuclear Non-Proliferation Regime at a Crossroads and Korea, Jin-Hyun Paik (ed.), Oreum Publishing House, 2010 (in Korean)

Asian Approaches to International Law and the Legacy of Colonialism, Jin-Hyun Paik and Kevin Tan (eds.), Routledge, 2012

Sharing and Distributing Ocean Resources, Jin-Hyun Paik and Seokwoo Lee (eds.), Oreum Publishing House, 2013

Regions, Institutions and the Law of the Sea, Jin-Hyun Paik and Harry N. Scheiber (eds.), Martinus Nijhoff Publishers, 2013

Governing Ocean Resources: New Challenges and Emerging Regimes, Jin-Hyun Paik and others (eds.), Martinus Nijhoff Publishers, 2013

Selected articles (English and Korean)

"Some Legal Problems relating to Maritime Jurisdiction of North Korea", J. Craven, J. Schneider and C. Stimson (eds.), *The International Implications from the Extended Maritime Jurisdiction in the Pacific*, University of Hawaii Press, 1989

"A Single Boundary for the Continental Shelf and the EEZ", Korean Journal of Comparative Law, Vol. 17, 1989

"Evolution of Rules for Maritime Boundary Delimitation and Boundary Issues around the Korean Peninsula", *Ocean Policy Studies*, Vol. 6, No. 1, 1991 (in Korean)

"A Study on the Substitution of Armistice Regime on the Korean Peninsula", *Korean Journal of Unification Affairs*, Vol. 3, No. 1, 1991 (in Korean)

"Deep Seabed Mining Regime: A Stumbling Block to the Universality of the UN Convention on the Law of the Sea?", *Korean Journal of Comparative Law*, Vol. 19, 1991

"Inter-Korean Economic Cooperation and US Trade Restrictions against North Korea", *Korean Journal of Unification Affairs*, Vol. 4, No. 2, 1992 (in Korean)

"Relation between User States and Coastal States with Respect to International Navigation", E. Miles and T. Kuribayashi (eds.), *The Law of the Sea in the 1990s: A Framework for Further International Cooperation*, University of Hawaii Press, 1992

"Inter-Korea Shipping Cooperation and International Law", *Seoul International Law Journal*, Vol. 1, No. 1, 1994 (in Korean)

"Security of SLOCs in the Western Pacific: Recommendation for Enhanced Cooperation", B. Nagara and K. Balakrishnan (eds.), *The Making of A Security Community in the Asia-Pacific*, 1994

"Rethinking Collective Security in the Post-Cold War World", J. Y. Ra (ed.), *The New World Order and the Role of the United Nations*, 1994

"East Asia and the Law of the Sea", D. Rothwell and J. Crawford (eds.), *The Law of the Sea in the Asian-Pacific Region: Developments and Prospects*, Martinus Nijhoff Publishers, 1994

"The United Nations Convention on the Law of the Sea and Northeast Asian Maritime Practice", Korean Journal of Comparative Law, Vol. 22, 1994

"UN's Expanding Roles in International Security and Korea", *Journal of Security Studies*, Vol. 5, No. 1, 1995 (in Korean)

"Law and Practice of Environment-related Trade Measures: with Particular Reference to the Interpretation and Application of Multilateral Trade Rules", *Korean Journal of International Law*, Vol. 40, No. 1, 1995 (in Korean)

"Can the United Nations Make Peace?: UN Peacemaking in International Law and Relations", Kyung-Won Kim (ed.), *The Rise of East Asia and the United Nations*, 1995

"Building a Peace Regime on the Korean Peninsula", Korea and World Affairs, Vol. XIX, No. 3, 1995

"Multilateral Security Regime in Northeast Asia and Sino-Korea Cooperation", *Journal of Sino-Soviet Affairs*, Vol. 19, No. 4, 1995/1996 (in Korean)

"Exploitation of Natural Resources: Potential for Conflicts in Northeast Asia", Sam Bateman and Stephen Bates (eds.), *Calming the Waters: Initiatives for Asia-Pacific Maritime Cooperation*, CPN Publication, 1996

"Strengthening Maritime Security in Northeast Asia", Bunn Nagara and Cheah Siew Ean (eds.), *Managing Security and Peace in the Asia-Pacific*, ISIS Malaysia Press, 1996

"Exclusive Economic Zone and Maritime Boundary Delimitation in Northeast Asia", Sam Bateman and Stephen Bates (eds.), *The Seas Unite*, CPN Publication, 1996

"Legal Aspect of United Nations Peacekeeping: with Particular Reference to Domestic Law and Practice of Korea", *Seoul International Law Journal*, Vol. 3, No. 2, 1996

"UNCLOS and Boundary Delimitation in East Asia", Korean Journal of Comparative Law, Vol. 24, 1996

"Security Cooperation in Northeast Asia and the Korean Peninsula", Journal of Sino-Soviet Affairs, Vol. 21, No. 2, 1997 (in Korean)

"Multilateralism and the Korean Peninsula", Korea and World Affairs, Vol. XXI, No. 1, 1997

"Territorial Disputes in Northeast Asia Seas: Situations, Possibilities and Prognosis", Mohamad Jawhar Hassan and Sheikh Ahmad Raffie (eds.), *Bringing Peace to the Pacific*, ISIS Malaysia, 1997

"Exclusive Economic Zone in Northeast Asia: Source of Conflict or Avenue towards Cooperation?", *Korea and World Affairs*, Vol. XXI, No. 4, 1997

"United Nations System to Protect Human Rights", International Human Rights Law, Vol. 2 (1998) (in Korean)

"Thinking Strategically about Security in the Pacific Asia", Hans Maull, Gerald Segal and Jusuf Wanandi (eds.), *Europe and Asia Pacific*, Routledge, 1998

"Science and Technology in Environmental Diplomacy", Journal of International and Area Studies, Vol. 7, No. 2, 1998 (in Korean)

"Security Multilateralism in the Asia-Pacific: Merits and Limitations", K. I. Back (ed.), *Comprehensive Security and Multilateralism in the Post-Cold War East Asia*, 1999

"Use of Force, UN and the Kosovo Conflict", *International Studies*, Vol. 30, No. 6, 1999 (in Korean)

"Law and Practice of International Regulation on Dumping of Wastes at Sea", *Seoul International Law Journal*, Vol. 6, No. 2, 1999 (in Korean)

"Maritime Security Cooperation in the Asia-Pacific: Challenges and Tasks", *Journal* of International and Area Studies, Vol. 8, No. 3, 1999 (in Korean)

"Creating a Multilateral Cooperative Security System in East Asia", Ralph A. Cossa (ed.), US-Korea-Japan Relations: Building toward a Virtual Alliance, CSIS Press, 1999

"Maritime Security in the Asia-Pacific", William Tow and Ramesh Thakur (eds.), Asia's Emerging Regional Order: Reconciling Traditional and Human Security, United Nations University Press, 2000

"Domestic Legal Effect of Treaties: Comparative Analysis of Theories, Practice and Policy", *Korean Journal of International Law*, Vol. 45, No. 1, 2000 (in Korean)

"Issues related to Replace Armistice Regime with Peace Regime on the Korean Peninsula", *Seoul Law Journal*, Vol. 41, No. 2, 2000 (in Korean)

"A Study on the Law and Institutions related to Verification of Arms Control", *Strategic Studies*, Vol. 11, No. 2, 2002 (in Korean)

"International Terrorism and the Role of the United Nations", Soo-Gil Park (ed.), United Nations in the 21st Century and Korea: New Challenges and Tasks, Oreum Publishing House, 2002 (in Korean)

"Implementing Mechanism of the Kyoto Protocol to the Framework Convention on Climate Change", *Journal of International and Area Studies*, Vol. 12, No. 4, 2003 (in Korean)

"Analysis of International Negotiation: The Case of Korea-Japan Fishery Negotiation", *Dispute Resolution Studies Review*, Vol. 2, No. 2, 2004 (in Korean)

"Assessing the UNCLOS Regime: with Particular Reference to the Law of the Sea Institutions", *Korean Journal of International Law*, Vol. 50, No. 3, 2005 (in Korean)

"Maritime Security in East Asia: Major Issues and Regional Response", *Journal of International and Area Studies*, Vol. 12, No. 2, 2005

"Reflection on Korean Diplomacy on the 60th Anniversary of Founding of Republic of Korea", Good Society (ed.), 60 Years of Republic of Korea: Reflection and Prospects, Knowledge Industry Publishers, 2008 (in Korean)

"International Dispute Settlement and International Adjudication", *Journal of International Organization*, Vol. 5, 2009 (in Korean)

"Progress and Limitations of the Nuclear Non-Proliferation Treaty", J. H. Paik (ed.), *Nuclear Non-Proliferation Regime at a Crossroads and Korea*, Oreum Publishing House, 2010 (in Korean)

"Role of Proportionality in Maritime Delimitation: State of Jurisprudence", H. P. Hestermeyer and Others (eds.), *Coexistence, Cooperation and Solidarity*, Martinus Nijhoff Publishers, 2012

"Rise of International Adjudication and its Impact on International Dispute Settlement", J. H. Paik and Kevin Tan (eds.), *Asian Approaches to International Law and the Legacy of Colonialism*, Routledge, 2012

Stanisław Michał Pawlak (Poland)

Born

Kalisz, Poland, 27 September 1933

Education

Master of Law, University of Warsaw (1955)

Doctor of Law, University of Warsaw (1967)

Doctor habilitated of Political Science, University of Warsaw (1973)

Professional experience

Legal Adviser and Analytic Officer, Polish delegation to the Neutral Nations Supervisory Commission in Panmunjon, Korea (1956-1958)

Attaché and Second Secretary, Polish Embassy, Tokyo (1958-1963)

Senior Counsellor, Ministry of Foreign Affairs (1963-1965, 1970-1972)

Deputy Chief, Polish delegation to the International Control Commission, Saigon, Viet Nam (1965-1966)

First Secretary, Polish Embassy to the United States of America (1967-1970)

Deputy Director, Foreign Minister's Office (1973-1975)

Polish Representative to the United Nations General Assembly (1973-1978, 1983-1990, 2002-2005)

Associate Professor of International Relations and International Law, Faculty of Journalism and Political Science, University of Warsaw (1974-2001)

Director, Department of International Organizations, Ministry of Foreign Affairs (1975-1978)

Ambassador, Canada (1978-1983)

Director, Legal and Treaty Department, Ministry of Foreign Affairs (1983-1986)

Head of Polish delegation, talks with the GDR delegation on the Agreement of 22 May 1989 on delimitation of the maritime boundary with the GDR (1983-1988)

Head of Polish delegation, talks with the USSR delegation on the delimitation of the Polish-Soviet sea border (1985)

Chairman, Polish delegation to the Vienna diplomatic conference which drew up the draft Convention on the law of treaties between States and international organizations and between international organizations (1986)

Director, International Organizations Department, Ministry of Foreign Affairs (1986-1989)

Ambassador and Permanent Representative of Poland, United Nations, New York (1989-1991)

Visiting Professor, various universities in the United States and Syria (1990-2001)

Chairman, group of Polish experts, talks with the delegation of experts of the Russian Federation and delegations of experts of other interested States on protection and conservation of marine resources of the Sea of Okhotsk (1992-1995)

Delegate of Poland to the Steering Committee for Human Rights (CDDH), Council of Europe (1992-1995)

Deputy-Director, Legal and Treaty Department, Ministry of Foreign Affairs (1992-1996)

Chairman, Polish Delegation to the International Conference which drew up the 1994 Convention on Protection of Fisheries in the Bering Sea (1993-1994)

Chairman, Polish Delegation to the United Nations Conference for the Agreement on Straddling Fish Stocks and Highly Migratory Stocks (1993-1995)

Ambassador, Syrian Arab Republic and Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan (1996-2001)

Adviser to the President of the Republic of Poland (2001-2005)

Titular Ambassador (2002-present)

Professor of International Relations and Public International Law, Faculty of Journalism and Political Science, University of Warsaw (2002-2011)

Professor Emeritus, University of Warsaw; President, thirteenth Meeting of States Parties to the Convention (2003)

Chairman, Polish delegations to the thirteenth and fourteenth Meetings of States Parties to the Convention (2003-2004)

nominated to the List of Arbitrators under article 2 of annexes V and VII to the Convention (2004)

Professor and Dean, Faculty of Social Science and Administration, Warsaw Academy of Computer Science and Administration (2005-present)

Member

International Law Commission (1987-1991, Rapporteur 1987, Chairman of the Drafting Committee 1991)

Editorial Board of the Recueil Documents, Warsaw (1971-1989)

Science Council, Institute of International Law, University of Warsaw (1983-1987)

Legislative Council to the Prime Minister of Poland (1983-1989)

Science Council, Polish Institute of International Affairs (1983-1989)

International Law Association (1986-present)

Nominated by the President of the International Tribunal for the Law of the Sea as a judge in the Arbitral Tribunal in the case the Philippines versus China.

Publications

Numerous books and articles in scientific magazines on international law and international relations concerning activities of the United Nations, disarmament, international terrorism and on Japanese, Chinese, Canadian and American foreign policy, including: Okinawa, 1972

The United States Policy towards China 1941-1955 (in Polish), 1973

The US Policy towards China 1941-1955 (in Russian), Moscow, 1974

The United States Policy towards China 1956-1978 (in Polish), 1982

"Political and Legal Aspects of International Terrorism", Sprawy Międzynarodowe, Sept 1988

Present value of the idea of atomic-free zones in the world, 1987

Yalta and Potsdam, 1985

"The legal aspects of verification", The International Law of Arms Control and Disarmament, 1991

"Poland's Treaty Policy 1990-1993", Yearbook of Polish Foreign Policy, 1993-1994

Protection of national minorities in Europe (in Polish), Warsaw, 2001

"The United Nations Towards International Terrorism" (in Polish), Organizacja Narodow Zjednoczonych — Bilans i Peryspektywy, Warsaw, 2006

"Multilateral Diplomacy — its Role and Tasks" (in Polish), Stosunki Miedzynarodowe w XXI wieku, Warsaw, 2006

"The Protection of National Minorities in Eastern Europe", OSCE and Minorities – Assessment and Prospects, Warsaw, 2007

"The Jurisdiction of the International Tribunal for the Law of the Sea" (in Polish, with English summary), Yearbook *Prawo Morskie*, vol. XXV, Gdansk, 2009

"Some Reflections on Factors Exerting Influence on Maritime Boundary Delimitation", in: *Coexistence, Cooperation and Solidarity: Liber Amicorum Rüdiger Wolfrum*, Holger P. Hestermeyer, Doris König, Nele Matz-Lück et al. (eds), Martinus Nijhoff, Leiden, 2011

"Poland's policy towards the Middle East", in: Directions and Areas of Polish Foreign Policy, S. Bielen (ed.), Warsaw, 2012

"The Baltic Sea Region — an Area of Interdependence of Baltic States", in: Governing Ocean Resources, Leiden-Boston, 2013

Distinctions

The Officer's Cross of Polonia Restituta (1985) and other high Polish, German and Vietnamese decorations

The Commander's Cross of Polonia Restituta (2005)

Helmut Türk (Austria)

Judge of the International Tribunal for the Law of the Sea Vice-President of the Tribunal (2008-2011)

Born	Linz, Austria, 24 April 1941
Education	
1959-1963	Dr. jur., University of Vienna
1963-1964	College of Europe, Bruges, Belgium
Professional career	
1965-1967	Federal Ministry for Foreign Affairs (MFA), International Law Department
1967-1972	Austrian Consulate General Hong Kong (1971/72 Acting Consul General)
1972-1978	MFA, International Law Department
1977-1978	MFA, Deputy Legal Adviser
1978-1982	Austrian Embassy Bonn, Germany (Deputy Head of Mission)
1982-1993	MFA, Legal Adviser (Head of International Law Department); Agent of the Austrian Federal Government before the European Commission and the European Court of Human Rights
1991-1993	MFA, Deputy Secretary-General for Foreign Affairs
1993-1999	Austrian Ambassador to the United States of America and the Commonwealth of The Bahamas, Permanent Observer of Austria to the Organization of American States
1999-2004	Director-General of the Office of Austrian Federal President; Member of the Austrian National Security Council
2005-2006	Austrian Ambassador to the Holy See, the Sovereign Military Order of Malta and the Republic of San Marino

(a)

2008-present	Conciliator under Annex V and Arbitrator under Annex VII of the United Nations Convention on the Law of the Sea
Professional activities	
Conferences and meetings related	to the law of the sea
1973-1979	Third United Nations Conference on the Law of the Sea (1976-1979 Deputy Head of Delegation)
1988	International Conference on the Suppression of Unlawful Acts against the Safety of Maritime Navigation; Head of Delegation
1989-1994	Preparatory Commission for the International Seabed Authority and for the International Tribunal for the Law of the Sea; Head of Delegation; Chairman of the Credentials Committee
1993-1994	Informal consultations of the United Nations Secretary-General on the Law of the Sea; Head of Delegation
1997/1998	President of the Meeting of States Parties of the United Nations Convention on the Law of the Sea
1994-1999	Assembly of the International Seabed Authority; Head of Delegation, Chairman of the Credentials Committee
1996-1998	Austrian Representative on the Council of the International Seabed Authority
2003-2005	Assembly of the International Seabed Authority, Head of Delegation, Chairman of the Credentials Committee

(b) Other conferences and meetings

Chairman of the following conferences and meetings:

Committee of Senior Officials of the Council
of Europe responsible for the preparation of a
European Ministerial Conference on Human
Rights

1984-1986	Committee of Senior Officials of the Council of Europe responsible for the preparation of a European Ministerial Conference on the Combat of Terrorism
1989	6th (Legal) Committee at the 44th session of the United Nations General Assembly
1990-1992	Committee of Legal Advisers of the Council of Europe on Public International Law (1988- 1989 Vice-Chairman)

Head of the Austrian delegation to the following conferences and meetings (selection):

1983	United Nations Conference on the Succession of States in Respect of State Property, Archives and Debts
1983	Second World Conference to Combat Racism and Racial Discrimination
1984	CSCE-Meeting of Experts on Peaceful Settlement of Disputes
1984	25th Extraordinary Session of the Assembly of ICAO
1985	CSCE-Meeting of Experts on Human Rights
1986	United Nations Conference on the Law of Treaties between States and International Organizations or between International Organizations
1987/1989	United Nations Human Rights Commission
1988	International Conference on Air Law to adopt a Protocol on Suppression of Unlawful Acts of Violence at Airports serving International Civil Aviation
1989-1991	Paris, Copenhagen and Moscow Meetings of the Conference on the Human Dimension of the CSCE
1966-2004	Advisor of the Austrian Delegation to the United Nations General Assembly

(c) Judicial and arbitral functions

1986-1993	Member of the Panel of Arbitrators of the International Energy Agency Dispute Settlement Centre
1988-2008	Member of the Permanent Court of Arbitration

Publications (selection)

"The land-locked Countries and the United Nations Convention on the Law of the Sea" (together with G. Hafner) in: Essays on the New Law of the Sea, Budislav Vukas (ed.), Zagreb 1985

"The European Ministerial Conference on Human Rights" in: Protecting Human Rights: The European Dimension, Studies of Gerard J. Wiarda, Carl Heymanns Verlag KG 1988

"Die Europäische Menschenrechtskonvention im internationalen Vergleich", in: Österreich im Europarat, 1956-1986, Bilanz einer 30-jährigen Mitgliedschaft, Verlag der Österreichischen Akademie der Wissenschaften 1988

"Die europäischen Neutralen und die Europäischen Gemeinschaften", in: "Verantwortung in unserer Zeit — Festschrift für Dr. Rudolf Kirchschläger", Hrsg. Alois Mock und Herbert Schambeck, Verlag: Österreichische Staatsdruckerei 1990

"The Negotiation of a New Geneva-style Convention: a Government Lawyer's Perspective", in: "Environmental Protection and the Law of War: A 'Fifth Geneva' Convention on the Protection of the Environment in Time of Armed Conflict", Glen Plant (ed.); Beelhaven Press London and New York, 1992

"Zur Errichtung eines Kriegsverbrechertribunals für das ehemalige Jugoslawien" in: Für Staat und Recht, Festschrift für Herbert Schambeck", Hrsg. Johannes Hengstschläger, Heribert Franz Köck, Karl Korinek, Klaus Stern und Anton Trujol y Sera, Berlin 1994

"Neutralität und Mitgliedschaft bei den Vereinten Nationen" in: Völkerrecht zwischen normativem Anspruch und politischer Realität, Festschrift für Karl Zemanek zum 65. Geburtstag", herausgegeben von Konrad Ginther, Gerhard Hafner, Lilly Sucharipa-Behrmann, Berlin 1994

"Österreich im Spannungsfeld von Neutralität und kollektiver Sicherheit", Verlag Österreich (Österreichische Staatsdruckerei) 1997

"Die Wende 1989/90 und die Obsoleterklärung einiger Artikel des Staatsvertrags", in: Der Österreichische Staatsvertrag 1955 — Internationale Strategie, rechtliche Relevanz, nationale Identität, Arnold Suppan, Gerald Stourzh, Wolfgang <üller (eds.), 2005

"Die Militärischen und Luftfahrt-Bestimmungen des Österreichischen Staatsvertrags und deren Obsoleszenz", in: *Staatsvertrag und immerwährende Neutralität* Österreichs: Eine juristische Analyse, Waldemar Hummer (ed.), 2007

"The Contribution of the International Tribunal for the Law of the Sea to International Law", in: *Penn State International Law Review, Fall 2007 (26 Penn St. Int'l L. Rev. 289)*

"The Landlocked States and the Law of the Sea", *Revue belge de droit international, vol. XL, 2007-1*

"Combating Terrorism at Sea — the Suppression of Unlawful Acts against the Safety of Maritime Navigation", University of Miami International and Comparative Law Review, Vol. 15, Special Issue Spring 2008

"Combating Terrorism at Sea — the Suppression of Unlawful Acts against the Safety of Maritime Navigation", in: *Legal Challenges in Maritime Security*, M. H. Nordquist, R. Wolfrum et al. (eds), 2008

"Montenegro", Max Planck Encyclopedia of Public International Law Online (http://www.mpepil.com/), 2008

"The Contribution of the International Tribunal for the Law of the Sea to International Law", in: *Maritime Boundary Disputes, Settlement Processes, and the Law of the Sea (Publications on Ocean Development)*, S.-Y. Hong and J. M. Van Dyke (eds), 2009

"La protección de las aguas marinas. La función del Tribunal Internacional para el Derecho del Mar", in: *La cuestión ecológica: La vida del hombre en el mundo*, Nunciatura Apostólica en España (Biblioteca de Autores Cristianos), 2009

"Zwölf Jahre Internationaler Seegerichtshof", in: *Die Welt im Spannungsfeld zwischen Regionalisierung und Globalisierung, Festschrift für Heribert Franz Köck*, P. Fischer, M. M. Karollus and S. Stadlmeier (eds.), 2009

"Trieste", *Max Planck Encyclopedia of Public International Law Online* (http://www.mpepil.com/), 2009

"The idea of the common heritage of mankind", in: Serving the Rule of International Maritime Law, Essays in honour of Professor David Joseph Attard, N. A. Martinez Guttierrez (ed.), 2009

"The Resurgence of Piracy: A Phenomenon of Modern Times", University of Miami International and Comparative Law Review, Vol. 17, Issue I, 2009

"The Waning Freedom of the Seas", in: L'évolution et l'état actuel du droit international de la mer, Mélanges de droit de la mer offerts à Daniel Vignes, R. Casado Raigón, G. Cataldi (ed.), Bruylant, Bruxelles, 2009

"The Contribution of the International Tribunal for the Law of the Sea to International Law", in: *The International Legal Regime of Areas beyond National Jurisdiction: Current and Future Developments*, Alex G. Oude Elferink and Erik J. Molenaar (eds.), Leiden, 2010

"Maritime Protection and Violence at Sea", in: *Sûreté maritime et violence en mer/Maritime Security and Violence at Sea*, José Manuel Sobrino Heredia (ed.), Bruylant/Université de Bruxelles, 2011

"Advisory Opinions and the Law of the Sea", in: *The Challenges of Contemporary International Law and International Relations — Liber Amicorum Dr. Ernest Petrič*, M. Pogačnik et al. (ed.), European Law Faculty of Nova Gorica, Nova Gorica, 2011

"Water in the Contemporary World", in: *Coexistence, Cooperation and Solidarity: Liber Amicorum Rüdiger Wolfrum*, Holger P. Hestermeyer, Doris König, Nele Matz-Lück et al. (eds.), Martinus Nijhoff, Leiden, 2011 Reflections on the Contemporary Law of the Sea, Publications on Ocean Development, Vol. 71, Vaughan Lowe and Robin Churchill (eds.), Martinus Nijhoff Publishers, Leiden/Boston, 2012

"The Work of the International Tribunal for the Law of the Sea", in: *Ocean Yearbook 26, Dalhousie University*, Aldo Chircop, Scott Coffen-Smout, and Moira McConnell (eds.), Martinus Nijhoff Publishers, Leiden/Boston 2012

Shunji Yanai (Japan)

President, International Tribunal for the Law of the Sea

Born	Tokyo, Japan, on 15 January 1937
Current positions	
October 2011-	President, International Tribunal for the Law of the Sea
October 2005-	Judge, International Tribunal for the Law of the Sea
2010-	Director, Nifco Inc.
2009-	President, International Law Association (Japan Branch)
2008-	Advisor, Japan Atomic Industrial Forum, Inc.
2007-	University Professor, Waseda University, Tokyo

Education

LL.B., Faculty of Law, University of Tokyo (1961)

2002-2007	Professor of International Law, Graduate School of Law of Chuo University, Tokyo
2002-2007	Visiting Professor of International Law, Waseda University, Tokyo
1961-2002	Ministry of Foreign Affairs of Japan
1999-2001	Ambassador Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary of Japan to the United States of America
1997-1999	Vice-Minister for Foreign Affairs
1995-1997	Deputy Minister for Foreign Affairs
1993-1995	Deputy Vice-Minister for Foreign Policy
1992-1993	Director-General, International Peace Cooperation Headquarters, Prime Minister's Office
1990-1992	Director-General, Treaties Bureau

1987-1990	Consul General of Japan in San Francisco
1987	Deputy Director-General, Treaties Bureau
1984-1987	Deputy Director-General, Asian Affairs Bureau
1981-1984	Minister-Counsellor, Embassy of Japan in the Republic of Korea
1978-1981	Director, Treaties Division
1977-1978	Director, Legal Affairs Division
1977	Member of the Drafting Committee of the Law of the Territorial Sea
1976-1977	Director, International Conventions Division
Participation in international conferences and meetings	
2012	Third International Symposium on Scientific and Legal Aspects of the Regimes of the Continental Shelf and the Area (Beijing, China)
2012	Yeosu International Conference: Commemorating the 30th Anniversary of the Opening for Signature of the United Nations Convention on the Law of the Sea (Yeosu, Republic of Korea)
2012	World Oceans Day Panel Discussion to Commemorate the Thirtieth Anniversary of the Opening for Signature of the 1982 United Nations Convention on the Law of the Sea (New York, USA)
2012	75th International Law Association Conference (Sofia, Bulgaria)
2011-2012	General Assembly of the United Nations
2010	74th International Law Association Conference (The Hague, the Netherlands)
2009-2012	Meetings of States Parties to the United Nations Convention on the Law of the Sea
1996-1997	Political Directors Meeting of G7/G8 Summit
1995-1996	Asia Europe Meetings (ASEM)
1995-1996	ASEAN Regional Forum
1995	Asia Pacific Economic Cooperation (APEC)

1985	Japan-Korea Joint Committee on the Continental Shelf
1978-1980	Fisheries negotiations with Indonesia, the Soviet Union and the Republic of Korea
1973-1978	Third United Nations Conference on the Law of the Sea
1973-1974	United Nations Outer Space Committee and Legal Sub-committee Sessions
1972-1996	United Nations General Assembly Sessions (First, Second and Sixth Committees, 1972- 1974, 1976, 1991, 1993-1996)
1972	United Nations Conference on Trade and Development
1968-1969	Vienna Conference on the Law of Treaties

Selected publications

Shunji YANAI & Kuniaki ASOMURA, "Japan and the Emerging Order of the Sea: Two Maritime Laws of Japan", *Japanese Annual of International Law*, 1978

Shunji YANAI, "Practical Needs for Treaties and the Democratic Control over Treaty Making Process" (in Japanese), *Journal of International Law and Diplomacy*, 1979

Shunji YANAI, "Presentation Made at the Trade Bill Conference, Brigham Young Law School", *Brigham Young University Law Review*, 1989

Shunji YANAI, "International Law-Making Process and Domestic Law" (in Japanese), in S. YAMAMOTO et al., *International Law and Domestic Law*, 1991

Shunji YANAI, "Law Concerning Cooperation for United Nations Peace-keeping Operations and Other Operations: the Japanese PKO Experience", *Japanese Annual of International Law*, 1993

Shunji YANAI, et al., "Japan's Legal Framework for Peace-keeping Operations and International Humanitarian Relief Operations", *Japan-US-Canada Trilateral Perspectives on International Legal Issues*, 1996

Shunji YANAI, et al., "Remembering and Forgetting: The U.S. Role in the Asia Pacific at the Turn of the Century", *The CSIS Press*, 2001

Shunji YANAI, "International Law in Japan's Diplomacy" (in Japanese), in Japanese Society of International Law (ed.), A Century of Japan and International Law, 2001

Shunji YANAI, "Evolution of Japan's Peace-keeping Operations", in K. OUCHI et al. (eds.), United Nations' Contributions to the Prevention and Settlement of Conflicts — Series of the Institute of Comparative Law in Japan, 2003

Shunji YANAI, "La coopération régionale contre la piraterie en Asie", Annuaire français de Droit international, 2006

Shunji YANAI, et al., "Dialogue between International Law and Constitutional Law" (in Japanese), *Chuo Law Journal*, 2006

Shunji YANAI, "Drastic Changes in Japan's Diplomacy" (in Japanese), The Asahi Shinbun, 2007

Shunji YANAI, "The New Generation of Japanese Lawyers Meets Globalization" (in Japanese), *Chuo Law Journal*, 2007

Shunji YANAI, "Reconstruction of the Legal Basis for Security" (in Japanese), Sophia Law Review, 2009

Shunji YANAI, "Japan's Contribution to International Peace and its Political and Legal Background", in H. HESTERMEYER, R. WOLFRUM et al., *Coexistence, cooperation and solidarity : Liber Amicorum Rüdiger Wolfrum*, 2012

Shunji YANAI, "Japan and the United States in Changing Asia: Challenge and Perspective" (in Japanese), in T. YOSHINO (supervisor), *Japan and the United States in Changing Asia*, 2012